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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
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FORM 10-Q
(MARK ONE)

X  QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarter ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024

0  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
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MULTIPLAN CORPORATION

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 84-3536151

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

115 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10003
(Address of principal executive offices)
(212) 780-2000

(Issuer’s telephone number)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Trading
Title of each class Symbol Name of each exchange on which registered
Shares of Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share MPLN

New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(8232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company or an emerging growth

company. See definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer”, “smaller reporting company”, and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer X Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer o] Smaller reporting company o]
Emerging growth company o]

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes No

As of May 6, 2024 July 22, 2024, 644,868,398 645,723,791 shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, were issued and outstanding.
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GLOSSARY
Unless otherwise stated in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this "Quarterly Report") or the context otherwise requires, references to:
"2023 Annual Report" are to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023;
"2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan" are to our 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as it may be amended and/or restated from time to time;
"5.50% Senior Secured Notes" are to the $1,050,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 5.50% Senior Secured Notes due 2028 issued by MPH;
"5.750% Notes" are to the $1,300,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 5.750% Senior Notes due 2028 issued by MPH;
"Adjusted EPS" are to adjusted earnings per share;
"ASU" are to Accounting Standard Update;
"Board" are to the board of directors of the Company;
"BST" are to Benefits Science LLC;
"Cash Interest" are to interest paid in cash on the Senior Convertible PIK Notes;
"Churchill* are to Churchill Capital Corp Ill, a Delaware corporation, which changed its name to MultiPlan Corporation following the consummation of the Transactions;
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"Churchill IPO" are to the initial public offering by Churchill which closed on February 19, 2020;

"Churchill's Class A common stock" are, prior to consummation of the Transactions, to Churchill's Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share and, following
consummation of the Transactions, to our Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share;

"Class A common stock” are to MultiPlan's Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share;

"Closing" are to the consummation of the Mergers;

"Closing Date" are to October 8, 2020, the date on which the Transactions were consummated;

"Common PIPE Investment" are to the private placement pursuant to which Churchill entered into subscription agreements with certain investors whereby such investors
subscribed for (a) 130,000,000 shares of Churchill's Class A common stock at a purchase price of $10.00 per share for an aggregate commitment of $1,300,000,000 and (b)
warrants to purchase 6,500,000 shares of Churchill's Class A Common Stock (for each share of Churchill's Class A common stock subscribed, the investor received 1/20th of a
warrant to purchase one share of Churchill's Class A common stock, with each whole warrant having a strike price of $12.50 per share and a maturity date of October 8, 2025). The
Common PIPE Investment was subject to an original issue discount (which was paid in additional shares of Churchill's Class A common stock) of 1% for subscriptions of
$250,000,000 or less and 2.5% for subscriptions of more than $250,000,000, which resulted in an additional 2,050,000 shares of Churchill's Class A common stock being issued.

The Common PIPE Investment was consummated on the Closing Date;

"common stock" are, prior to the consummation of the Transactions, to Churchill's Class A common stock and Churchill's Class B common stock and, following consummation of
the Transactions, to the Company's Class A common stock;

"Company" are, prior to the consummation of the Transactions, to Churchill and, following consummation of the Transactions, to MultiPlan Corporation;

"Convertible PIPE Investment" are to the private placement pursuant to which the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain investors whereby such
Convertible PIPE Investors agreed to buy $1,300,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Senior Convertible PIK Notes. The Convertible PIPE Investment was consummated on
the Closing Date;

"Convertible PIPE Investors" are to the investors participating in the Convertible PIPE Investment;

"DHP" are to Discovery Health Partners;

"Exchange Act" are to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

"FASB" are to the Financial Accounting Standards Board;

"First Merger Sub" are to Music Merger Sub I, Inc., a Delaware corporation and direct, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company;

"founder shares" are to shares of Churchill's Class B common stock and Churchill's Class A common stock issued upon the automatic conversion thereof in connection with the
Closing;

"GAAP" are to generally accepted accounting principles in United States of America;

"Holdings" are to Polaris Investment Holdings, L.P.;

"HST" are to HSTechnology Solutions, Inc.;

"IDR" are to independent dispute resolution;

"Integration expenses" are costs associated with the integration of acquired companies into MultiPlan;

"Merger Agreement" are to that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 12, 2020, by and among Churchill, MultiPlan Parent, Holdings, First Merger Sub and
Second Merger Sub, as the same has been or may be amended, modified, supplemented or waived from time to time;

"Mergers" are to, together, (a) the merger of First Merger Sub with and into MultiPlan Parent with MultiPlan Parent being the surviving company in the merger (the "First
Merger") and (b) immediately following and as part of the same transaction as the First Merger, the merger of MultiPlan Parent with and into Second Merger Sub, with Second
Merger Sub surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Churchill (the "Second Merger");

"MPH" are to MPH Acquisition Holdings LLC;

"MultiPlan" are MultiPlan Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries;
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"MultiPlan Parent" are to Polaris Parent Corp., a Delaware corporation;

"non-income taxes" includes personal property taxes, real estate taxes, sales and use taxes and franchise taxes which are included in costs of services and general and
administrative expenses;

"other expenses, net" represents miscellaneous non-recurring income, miscellaneous non-recurring expenses, gain or loss on disposal of assets, impairment of other assets,
gain or loss on disposal of leases, tax penalties, and non-integration related severance costs;

"Payors" are our customers and potential customers, which include large national insurance companies, Blue Cross and Blue Shield plans, provider-sponsored and independent
health plans, third party administrators, bill review companies, Taft-Hartley plans, self-insured employers, federal and state government sponsored health plans and other entities
that pay medical bills related to the commercial healthcare, government, workers' compensation and auto medical markets;

"PSAV" are to percentage of savings;

"PEPM" are to per-employee-per-month;

"PIK Interest" are to interest paid through an increase in the principal amount of the outstanding Senior Convertible PIK Notes or through the issuance of additional Senior
Convertible PIK Notes;

"PIPE Warrants" are to the warrants to purchase Churchill's Class A common stock issued in connection with the Common PIPE Investment, on terms identical to the terms of
the Private Placement Warrants, other than the exercise period that started on November 7, 2020, the exercise price which is $12.50 per share and the redemption feature that
exists for all holders of the PIPE warrants;

"Private Placement Warrants" are to warrants issued to the Sponsor in a private placement simultaneously with the closing of the Churchill IPO and the Working Capital
Warrants whose terms are identical to the Private Placement Warrants;

"Public Warrants" are to the Company's warrants sold as part of the units in the Churchill IPO (whether they were purchased in the Churchill IPO or thereafter in the open
market);

"Revolver B" are to the revolving credit facility in conjunction with Term Loan B and maturing on August 24, 2026;

"revolving credit facility" are to MPH's $450.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility;

"SEC" are to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission;

"Second Merger Sub" are to Music Merger Sub Il, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and direct, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company;
"Senior Convertible PIK Notes" are the 6.00% / 7.00% Convertible Senior PIK Toggle Notes due 2027;

"senior secured credit facilities" are to MPH's senior secured credit facilities which consist of (a) a $1,325.0 million term loan facility maturing on September 1, 2028 and (b) a
$450.0 million revolving credit facility maturing on August 24, 2026;

"Sponsor" are to Churchill Sponsor Ill, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and an affiliate of M. Klein and Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and its
affiliates, in which certain of Churchill's directors and officers hold membership interests;

"Sponsor Note" are to the unsecured promissory note issued by the Company to the Sponsor in an aggregate principal amount of $1,500,000. The Sponsor converted the
unpaid balance of the Sponsor Note into Working Capital Warrants in connection with the Closing;

"Term Loan B" are to a term loan payable borrowed on August 24, 2021 in the amount of $1,325.0 million with a group of lenders due and payable on September 1, 2028;
"Term SOFR" are to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate;
"Transactions" are to the Mergers, together with the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and the related agreements;

"Transaction-related expenses" represents transaction costs, including those related to the Transactions and litigation related thereto as well as those related to any other
acquisitions, whether consummated or not;
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"Unvested Founder Shares" represents 12,404,080 of the Sponsor founder shares that were unvested as of October 8, 2020 in connection with the Merger Agreement and will
re-vest at such time as, during the period starting on October 8, 2021 and ending on October 8, 2025, the closing price of our Class A common stock exceeds $12.50 per share for
any forty (40) trading days in a sixty (60) consecutive day period. Such founder shares that do not re-vest on or before October 8, 2025 will be forfeited and cancelled;

"warrants" are to the Public Warrants, the Private Placement Warrants, the PIPE Warrants and the Working Capital Warrants;

"we," "our" or "us" are to MultiPlan and its consolidated subsidiaries; and

"Working Capital Warrants" are to the warrants to purchase Churchill's Class A common stock pursuant to the terms of the Sponsor Note, on terms identical to the terms of the
Private Placement Warrants.

Part I. Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements
MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
March December

31, 31,
2024 2023

June December
30, 31,
2024 2023

Assets
Current assets:
Current assets:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Trade accounts receivable, net

Unbilled IDR fees

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid taxes

Other current assets, net

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Goodwill
Other intangibles, net
Other assets, net
Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accounts payable

Accounts payable

Accrued interest

Accrued taxes

Operating lease obligation, short-term
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Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued compensation
Accrued legal contingencies
Other accrued expenses
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Operating lease obligation, long-term
Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Shareholders’ equity:
Shareholder interests
Shareholder interests
Shareholder interests
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value — 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value — 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value — 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued
Common stock, $0.0001 par value — 1,500,000,000 shares authorized; 673,899,672 and 667,808,296 issued; 644,185,300 and 648,319,379
shares outstanding

Common stock, $0.0001 par value — 1,500,000,000 shares authorized; 675,438,163 and 667,808,296 issued; 645,723,791 and 648,319,379
shares outstanding

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained deficit
Treasury stock — 29,714,372 and 19,488,917 shares
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income Loss and Comprehensive (Loss) Income Loss

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenues
Costs of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization of intangible assets shown below)
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Total expenses
Operating (loss) income

Interest expense
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Interest income

Gain on extinguishment of debt

(Gain) loss on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares

(Gain) loss on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares

(Gain) loss on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares
Net (loss) income before taxes

(Benefit) provision for income taxes

Net (loss) income
Net loss before taxes

Benefit for income taxes

Net loss

Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic

Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic

Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic

Weighted average shares outstanding — Diluted

Net (loss) income per share — Basic

Net (loss) income per share — Basic

Net (loss) income per share — Basic

Net (loss) income per share — Diluted

Net loss per share — Basic

Net loss per share — Basic

Net loss per share — Basic

Net loss per share — Diluted

Net (loss) income

Net (loss) income

Net (loss) income

Net loss

Net loss

Net loss

Other comprehensive income:

Change in unrealized losses on interest rate swaps, net of tax

Change in unrealized losses on interest rate swaps, net of tax

Change in unrealized losses on interest rate swaps, net of tax
Comprehensive (loss) income

Change in unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaps, net of tax

Change in unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaps, net of tax

Change in unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaps, net of tax

Comprehensive loss

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

(in thousands, except share data)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2024

Accumulated Other Total
Common Stock Issued . Paid-in Compr Treasury stock Shareholders
Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit Shares Amount Equity
Balance at beginning of
period 667,808,296 $ 67 $ 2348505 $ (11,778) $ (499,307) (19,488,917) $ (128,363) $ 1,709,124
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Stock Incentive Plans

Tax withholding related to
vesting of equity awards

Gains arising during the period
on Interest rate swaps

Reclassification adjustments
for gains included in net
income (interest expense)

Repurchase of common stock

Issuance of common stock in
connection with employee
stock purchase plan

Net loss

Balance at end of period

Balance at beginning of
period
2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan

Tax withholding related to
vesting of equity awards

Repurchase of common stock

Net income

Balance at end of period

Balance at beginning of
period
Stock Incentive Plans

Tax withholding related to
vesting of equity awards

Gains arising during the
period on Interest rate swaps

Reclassification adjustments
for gains included in net loss
(interest expense)

Issuance of common stock in
connection with employee
stock purchase plan

Net loss

Balance at end of period

Balance at beginning of
period

Stock Incentive Plans

5,464,292 = 5,619 = = = = 5,619
= = (3,.352) = = = = (3,.352)
= = = 6,963 = = = 6,963
1,579 1,579
= = = = = (10,225,455) (10,370) (10,370)
627,084 508 = = = = 508
= = = = (539,689) = = (539,689)
673,899,672 $ 67 $ 2,351,280 $ (3,236) $ (1,038,996) (29,714,372) $ (138,733) $ 1,170,382
Three Months Ended March 31, 2023
Accumulated Other Total
Common Stock Issued o . Treasury stock
A Paid-in Compr d Shar S
Shares Amount Capital Loss Earnings Shares Amount Equity
666,290,344 $ 67 $ 2,330,444 $ — $ (347,800) (27,117,406) $ (192,169) $ 1,790,542
951,825 — 3,695 — — — = 3,695
= = (452) = = = = (452)
— — — — — (5,248,247) (5,718) (5,718)
— — — — 209 — — 209
667,242,169 $ 67 $ 2,333,687 $ — $ (347,591) (32,365,653) $ (197,887) $ 1,788,276
Three Months Ended June 30, 2024
Common Stock Issued accumplateciothey Treasury stock fotes
Additional Paid-in Comprehensive . Shareholders’
Retained
Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit Shares Amount Equity
673,899,672 $ 67 $ 2,351,280 $ (3,236) $ (1,038,996) (29,714,372) $ (138,733) $ 1,170,382
688,579 — 7,266 — — — = 7,266
— — ® — - — — @
= = = 593 = = = 593
= = = 1,522 = = = 1,522
849,912 — 331 = = = = 331
= = = = (576,727) = = (576,727)
675,438,163 $ 67 $ 2,358,874 $ (1,121) $ (1,615,723) (29,714,372) $ (138,733) $ 603,364
Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
Accumulated Other Total
Common Stock Issued Treasury stock
Additional Paid-in Comprehensive . Shareholders’
Retained
Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit Shares Amount Equity
667,242,169 $ 67 $ 2,333,687 $ — $ (347,591) (32,365,653) $ (197,887) $ 1,788,276
139,086 = 4827 — — — — 4,827
9/49
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Tax withholding related to

stock

period

period

vesting of equity awards — — 5) — — — — (5)
Stock consideration paid for
BST acquisition — — — — (59,810) 21,588,652 79,024 19,214
Repurchase of common
— — — — (7,123,459) (7,422) (7,422)
Net loss — — — — (36,370) — — (36,370)
Balance at end of period 667,381,255 $ 67 $ 2,338,509 $ — 3 (443,771) (17,900,460) $ (126,285) $ 1,768,520
MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
(in thousands, except share data)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
Accumulated Other Total
Common Stock Issued . . B Treasury stock
A 1al Paid-in Comprehensive N Shareholders’
Retained
Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit Shares Amount Equity
Balance at beginning of
667,808,296 $ 67 $ 2,348,505 $ (11,778) $ (499,307) (19,488,917) $ (128,363) $ 1,709,124
Stock Incentive Plans 6,152,871 — 12,885 — — — — 12,885
Tax withholding related to
vesting of equity awards — — (3,355) — — — — (3,355)
Gains arising during the period
on Interest rate swaps — — — 7,556 — — — 7,556
Reclassification adjustments
for gains included in net loss
(interest expense) — — — 3,101 — — — 3,101
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — (10,225,455) (10,370) (10,370)
Issuance of common stock in
connection with employee
stock purchase plan 1,476,996 — 839 — — — — 839
Net loss — — — — (1,116,416) — — (1,116,416)
Balance at end of period 675,438,163 $ 67 $ 2,358,874 $ (1,121) $ (1,615,723) (29,714,372) $ (138,733) $ 603,364
Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Accumulated Other Total
Common Stock Issued Treasury stock
Additional Paid-in Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit Shares Amount Equity
Balance at beginning of
666,290,344 $ 67 $ 2,330,444 $ — 3 (347,800) (27,117,406) $ (192,169) $ 1,790,542
Stock Incentive Plans 1,090,911 — 8,522 — — — — 8,522
Tax withholding related to
vesting of equity awards — — (457) — — — — (457)
Stock consideration paid for
BST acquisition — — — — (59,810) 21,588,652 79,024 19,214
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — (12,371,706) (13,140) (13,140)
Net loss — — — — (36,161) — — (36,161)
Balance at end of period 667,381,255 $ 67 $ 2,338,509 $ — 3 (443,771) (17,900,460) $ (126,285) $ 1,768,520
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
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MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2024
Operating activities:
Net (loss) income
Net (loss) income
Net (loss) income
Net loss
Net loss
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Depreciation
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of the right-of-use asset
Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
(Gain) loss on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Prepaid taxes
Operating lease obligation
Accounts payable, accrued taxes, accrued expenses, legal contingencies and other
Accounts payable, accrued interest, accrued taxes, accrued expenses, legal contingencies and other
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment
BST Acquisition, net of cash acquired
BST Acquisition, net of cash acquired
BST Acquisition, net of cash acquired
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:
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Repurchase of 5.750% Notes
Repurchase of 5.750% Notes
Repurchase of 5.750% Notes
Repayments of Term Loan B
Repayments of Term Loan B
Repayments of Term Loan B
Repurchase of Senior Convertible PIK Notes
Repurchase of Senior Convertible PIK Notes
Repurchase of Senior Convertible PIK Notes
Taxes paid on settlement of vested share awards
Taxes paid on settlement of vested share awards
Taxes paid on settlement of vested share awards
Purchase of treasury stock
Purchase of treasury stock
Purchase of treasury stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment not yet paid
Purchases of property and equipment not yet paid
Purchases of property and equipment not yet paid
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Cash paid during the period for:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest
Interest
Interest
Income taxes, net of refunds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General Information and Basis of Accounting

General Information
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We are a market leading provider of data analytics and technology-enabled solutions designed to bring affordability, efficiency and fairness to the U.S. healthcare industry.
Through our proprietary data and technology platform, we provide out-of-network cost management, payment and revenue integrity data and decision science, business-to-business
healthcare payments and other services to the payors of healthcare, which are primarily health insurers and their administrative-services-only platforms, self-insured employers,
federal and state government-sponsored health plans (collectively "Payors") and other health plan sponsors (typically through their health plan administrators), and, indirectly, the
plan members who are the consumers of healthcare services.

Throughout the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise noted, "we," "us," "our", "MultiPlan", and the "Company" and similar terms

refer to MultiPlan and its subsidiaries.
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of MultiPlan Corporation have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations for reporting on
Form 10-Q. Certain information and disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) for complete consolidated financial statements
have been condensed or omitted pursuant to the SEC’s rules and regulations, although management believes that the disclosures are adequate and make the information
presented not misleading. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes herein should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of MultiPlan Corporation and the notes thereto, included in the Company’s 2023 Annual Report. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, which are of a normal
and recurring nature, necessary for a fair statement of the Company’s financial position as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and its results of operations
and cash flows for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023 have been included.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from the Company's estimates. Estimates are periodically reviewed in light of changes in circumstances, facts and
experience. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they become known. Significant estimates and assumptions reflected in these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to, revenue recognition, recoverability of long-lived assets, goodwill, valuation of Private Placement Warrants and
Unvested Founder Shares, valuation of stock-based compensation awards and income taxes.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an entity for which separate financial information is available and regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.
The Company manages its operations as a single segment for the purposes of assessing performance and making decisions. The Company's singular focus is being a leading
value-added provider of data analytics and technology-enabled end-to-end cost management, payment and revenue integrity solutions to the U.S. healthcare industry.

In addition, all of the Company's revenues and long-lived assets are attributable to operations in the United States for all periods presented.

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue Recognition
Disaggregation of Revenue

The following table presents revenues disaggregated by services and contract types:
Three Months Ended
March 31,
Three Months Ended
March 31,
Three Months Ended
March 31,
Three Months Ended June Six Months Ended June
30, 30,

(in thousands) (in thousands) 2024 2023 (in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenues
Network-Based Services
Network-Based Services
Network-Based Services
PSAV
PEPM
Other
Analytics-Based Services
PSAV
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PEPM

Other
Payment and Revenue Integrity
Services
PSAV
PEPM
Total Revenues
Percent of PSAV Percent of PSAV
Percent of PSAV revenues revenues 88.7 % 90.9 % revenues 89.2 % 89.9 % 88.9 % 90.4 %
Percent of PEPM Percent of PEPM
Percent of PEPM revenues revenues 9.6 % 8.5 % revenues 9.3 % 91 % 94% 88%
Percent of other Percent of other
Percent of other revenues revenues 17 % 0.6 % revenues 1.6 % 1.0 % 16% 08%

Due to the nature of our arrangements, certain estimates may be constrained if it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue will occur when the uncertainty is resolved.
For our percentage of savings contracts, portions of revenue that are recognized and collected in a reporting period may be returned or credited in subsequent periods. These
credits are the result of Payors not utilizing the discounts that were initially calculated, or differences between the Company’s estimates of savings achieved for a customer and the
amounts self-reported in the following month by that same customer. Significant judgment is used in constraining estimates of variable consideration and is based upon both
customer-specific and aggregated factors that include historical billing and adjustment data, customer contractual terms, and performance guarantees. We update our estimates at
the end of each reporting period as additional information becomes available. There have not been any material changes to estimates of variable consideration for performance
obligations satisfied prior to the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

The timing of payments from customers from time to time generates contract assets or contract liabilities, however these amounts are immaterial in all periods presented.

As part of our surprise billing services, we help our clients for federal disputes take claims through an independent dispute resolution ("IDR") process and we pay IDR fees on
their behalf. IDR fees include an administrative fee to cover the costs for administration of the IDR process; and an Independent Dispute Resolution Entity ("IDRE") fee to cover
dispute resolution services. These IDR fees are then collected from either our clients or the IDREs, depending on the outcome of the dispute.

Derivatives
Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its floating-rate debt. In September 2023, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert some
of its floating-rate debt to a fixed-rate basis. The Company entered into these agreements to reduce the variability of the cash flows in interest payments associated with the
Company’s floating-rate debt, thus reducing the impact of interest rate changes on future interest payment cash flows.

The Company has elected to apply the hedge accounting rules in accordance with authoritative guidance for the agreements entered into during the three twelve months ended
March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023. Changes in the fair value of interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges are recorded as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income within stockholders’

equity and are subsequently reclassified into interest expense in the same period(s) during which the hedged transaction affects "Earnings".

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Stock-Based Compensation

In 2024, the Company began granting a new type of award via the 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan, in the form of employee performance stock units ("PSUs"). The PSUs vest
approximately three years after grant if certain performance metrics are met, as follows: 50% of the PSUs may be earned based on the Company’s relative total stockholder return
(“RTSR”) over the measurement period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2026 compared to the Russel 2000, and 50% of the PSUs may be earned based on the cumulative
revenue from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2025.

The fair value assigned to PSUs is determined using the market price of the Company’s stock on the grant date for the performance based awards, i.e. the revenue PSUs, and
by using a Monte Carlo simulation for the market based awards, i.e. the RTSR PSUs. Stock-based compensation costs associated with awards with a performance condition are re-
assessed each reporting period based upon the estimated performance attainment on the reporting date until the performance conditions are met. The ultimate number of shares of
common stock that are issued to an employee is the result of the actual performance of the Company at the end of the performance period compared to the performance targets
and ranges from 0% to 150% of the initial PSU grant.

The Monte Carlo simulation model uses the same input assumptions as the Black-Scholes model to determine the expected potential ranking of the Company against the
Russel 2000, i.e. the probability of satisfying the market condition defined in the award. Expected volatility in the model was estimated based on the volatility of historical stock prices
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over a period matching the expected term of the award. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury yield constant maturities for a term matching the expected term of the
award.

Stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as compensation expense for employee awards, net of
forfeitures, over the applicable requisite service period of the stock award using the straight-line method for awards with only service conditions. The Company recognizes forfeitures
as they occur.

Certain assumptions used are subjective and require significant management judgment, and include (i) the risk-free rate, (ii) volatility, (iii) the expected term, and (iv) our
assessment of actual performance in comparison to the targets set in the awards. Changes in these assumptions can materially affect the estimate of the grant date fair value of the
PSUs and ultimately compensation expenses.

New Accounting Pronouncements Issued but Not Yet Adopted

ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07, Segment
Reporting (Topic 280), which provides enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. The standard also enhances interim disclosure requirements and provides new
segment disclosure requirements for entities with a single reportable segment. The standard is effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023,
and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Retrospective adoption is required for all prior periods presented. Early adoption is permitted. The
Company is currently evaluating the effect that implementation of this standard will have on the Company’s consolidated operating results, cash flows, financial condition and related
disclosures.

ASU 2023-09, Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (Topic 740). In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures
(Topic 740). This standard requires disaggregated information about a reporting entity's effective tax rate reconciliation as well as information on income taxes paid. The standard is
effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted, and may be applied either prospectively or retrospectively
for all prior periods presented. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this disclosure.

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Business Combinations
BST Acquisition

On May 8, 2023, the Company acquired 100 percent of Benefits Science LLC ("Benefits Science Technologies" or "BST"), a Texas limited liability company offering next
generation data and advanced analytics services for $160.1 million, net of acquired cash, consisting of $140.9 million in cash and $19.2 million in Company Class A common stock.
This acquisition adds enhanced data and analytics capabilities to our existing services.

The BST acquisition was accounted for as a business combination using the acquisition method of accounting. As a result of the BST acquisition and the application of
purchase accounting, BST's identifiable assets and liabilities were adjusted to their fair market value as of the acquisition date. For income tax purposes, the acquisition of BST is
treated as the acquisition of partnership interests. The resulting intangible assets are amortizable for income tax purposes.

Following the consummation of the transactions, the Company entered into separately recognized transactions with key employees and service providers of BST who are
employed or engaged by the Company and are eligible to participate in a long-term incentive and retention program. Pursuant to this incentive and retention program, cash
payments will be made to such participant if: (i) subject to limited exceptions, such participant remains employed or engaged by the Company through the date of payment; and (ii)
certain threshold, target and maximum annual recurring revenue targets relating to the business of BST are met over three to five years. The aggregate potential cash payments
under this plan are $66.0 million if the target annual recurring revenue targets are achieved, with additional aggregate potential cash payments of up to $16.5 million if the maximum
annual recurring revenue targets are achieved. If a minimum threshold as a percentage of target annual recurring revenue is not achieved, no cash payments will be due. The
Company will account for the incentive payments as post-combination compensation costs.

The following table summarizes the consideration transferred to acquire BST and the amounts of identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:
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(in thousands)

Total consideration

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses

Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Other assets

Other intangibles, netq)

Accounts payable

Other accrued expenses

Operating lease obligation, short-term
Operating lease obligation, long-term

Total identifiable net assets

Goodwill

@

-

$ 160,827

673
2,053
204

57
1,129
46
35,700
(717)
(938)
(150)
(1,033)
37,024

$ 123,803

Includes client relationships of $19.2 million with a remaining useful life of 20 years, technology of $15.5 million with a remaining useful life of 7 years, and non-compete

agreements of $1.0 million with a remaining useful life of 5 years. The weighted average remaining useful life of the acquired intangibles subject to amortization is 14 years.

The results of operations and financial condition of BST have been included in the Company's consolidated results from the date of acquisition.

In connection with the BST acquisition, the Company incurred transaction costs. The transaction costs have been expensed as incurred and these amounts totaling $6.8 million

for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, are included in general

and administrative expenses in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss. No transaction costs were incurred during the

three and six months ended June 30, 2024.

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The following represents pro forma effects of the BST acquisition as if it had occurred on January 1, 2022. The pro forma net loss includes: (1) an increase in amortization of
intangible assets of $3.0 million related to added amortization expense associated with intangible assets acquired in the acquisition; and (2) the addition of $11.3 million of
transaction costs incurred, together with the income tax effects on (1) through (2). These pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have occurred if
the acquisition occurred on the first day of the period presented, nor does the pro forma financial information purport to present the results of operations for future periods. The

following information for the year ended December 31, 2022 is presented in thousands:

Revenues

Net loss

3. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As of each balance sheet date, other intangible assets consisted of the following:
March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Weighted-
average Gross Net Gross Net
(in amortization Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying (in
(in thousands) thousands) period Amount Amortization Value = Amount Amorti Value th

Customer
relationships
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amortization

period

$ 1,090,810

(586,093)

Gross

Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization
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Provider
network

Technology

Trade names
Trade names
Non-compete

Total

Goodwill for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023 was as follows:
(in thousands) (in thousands) 2024 2023 (in thousands) 2024 2023
Beginning balance, January 1
Loss on impairment
Loss on impairment
Loss on impairment
Ending balance, March 31
Acquisitions
Loss on impairment
Loss on impairment
Loss on impairment
Ending balance, June 30

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of the Company in 2016 by Holdings, the HST acquisition in 2020, the DHP acquisition in 2021 and the BST acquisition in 2023. The
carrying value of goodwill was $3,312.7 $2,759.0 million and $3,829.0 million as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024

We concluded that the significant declines in our stock price and market capitalization during the month of March 2024 represented a triggering event and therefore performed
an impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets as of March 31, 2024.

The estimated fair value of our indefinite-lived trade names was less than their carrying value and as a result a loss on impairment of $2.7 million was recorded during the three
months ended March 31, 2024.

The quantitative assessment of our goodwill as of March 31, 2024 indicated that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit was less than its carrying value, and as a result a
loss on impairment of $516.4 million was recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2024.

The loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets was primarily due to the use of a higher discount rate in response to significant declines in the our stock price and lower
EBITDA multiples. There were no material changes in the forecasted revenues and expenses utilized in the analysis compared to November 1, 2023.

The Company incurred a goodwill impairment charge of $516.4 million in the first quarter of 2024. Of this impairment charge, $490.2 million is permanently nondeductible for
income tax purposes resulted in an income tax expense of $103.0 million. The impairment charge is treated as a discrete item for the three months ended March 31, 2024, which
impacted our effective tax rate versus our statutory tax rate.

During the three months ended June 30, 2024

We concluded that the significant declines in our stock price and market capitalization during the three months ended June 30, 2024, along with revised forecasts, represented
triggering events and therefore performed an impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets as of June 30, 2024.

No impairment was recorded for our indefinite-lived trade names during the three months ended June 30, 2024 as their fair value exceeded their carrying value.

The quantitative assessment of our goodwill as of June 30, 2024 indicated that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit was less than its carrying value, and as a result a
loss on impairment of $553.7 million was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

The loss on impairment of goodwill was primarily due to the use of lower projected cash flows, lower EBITDA multiples and the use of a higher discount rate in response to the
estimation uncertainty of our cash flow projections.

The Company incurred a goodwill impairment charge of $553.7 million during three months ended June 30, 2024. Of this impairment charge, $522.1 million is permanently
nondeductible for income tax purposes resulted in an income tax expense of $109.6 million. The impairment charge is treated as a discrete item for the three months ended June
30, 2024, which impacted our effective tax rate versus our statutory tax rate.

Impairment losses are included in Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of (loss)
income loss and comprehensive (loss) income. loss. No impairment was recorded in the three and six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.
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In the quantitative impairment test of goodwill performed in the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we calculate the estimated enterprise fair value of the
reporting unit using (i) a discounted cash flow analysis, (ii) forecasted EBITDA trading multiples for comparable publicly traded companies and (jii) historical EBITDA multiples for
comparable acquisitions, giving equal weight to the three approaches. Assumptions used in the discounted cash flow analysis include forecasted revenues, forecasted expenses,
the terminal growth rate and the discount rate. The fair value measurements are based on significant unobservable inputs, and thus represent Level 3 inputs. Following the goodwill
impairment the carrying value of this reporting unit equaled its fair value as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. Therefore, if business conditions or expectations were to change
materially, it may be necessary to record further impairment charges in the future.

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company incurred a goodwill impairment charge of $516.4 million in the first quarter of 2024. Of this impairment charge, $490.2 million is permanently nondeductible for
income tax purposes resulted in an income tax expense of $103.0 million. The impairment charge is treated as a discrete item for the three months ended March 31, 2024, which
impacted our effective tax rate versus our statutory tax rate.

3.4. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest risk on its floating rate debt. On September 12, 2023, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements with a total notional value of
$800 million to effectively convert a portion of its floating rate debt to a fixed-rate basis. The interest rate swap agreements are effective August 31, 2023 and mature on August 31,
2026. The Company entered into these agreements to reduce the volatility of the cash flows in interest payments associated with the Company's floating rate debt, thus reducing the
impact of interest rate changes on future interest payment cash flows. The Company's interest rate swaps are highly effective at offsetting the changes in cash outflows and
therefore designated as cash flow hedging instruments.

The Company records derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value, as described in Note 67 Fair Value Measurements. The gain or loss on the derivative is recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income and subsequently reclassified into interest expense in the same period(s) during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.

The following table represents the activity of cash flow hedges included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) loss for the periods presented:

(in thousands) 2024

Balance as of January 1 $ (11,778)
Unrealized gain recognized in other comprehensive income before reclassifications $ 6,963
Reclassifications to interest expense $ 1,579

Balance as of March 31, net of tax $ (3,236)
Unrealized gain recognized in other comprehensive income before reclassifications $ 593
Reclassification to interest expense $ 1,522

Balance as of June 30, net of tax $ (1,121)

There was no cash flow hedge activity during the three and six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

The Company recognized a $1.6 million gaingains related to the cash flow derivatives forof $1.5 million and $3.1 million during the three and six months ended March 31,
2024. June 30, 2024, respectively. The gain is gains are recognized within interest expense in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of (loss) income loss
and comprehensive (loss) income. loss.

The following table represents the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities within the condensed consolidated balance sheets:

(in thousands)

(in thousands)

(in thousands)

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:
Other current assets, net

Other current assets, net

Other current assets, net

Other liabilities

Other liabilities

Other liabilities
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4.5. Long-Term Debt

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, long-term debt consisted of the following:
Key Terms = Key Terms Key Terms

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Term Loan B
Term Loan B
Term Loan B
5.50% Senior Secured Notes
5.750% Notes
Senior Convertible PIK Notes
Finance lease obligations, non-current
Long-term debt
Less: current portion of long-term debt

Discount - Term Loan B

Discount — Senior Convertible PIK Notes
Less: debt discounts, net

Debt issuance costs - Term Loan B

Debt issuance costs - 5.50% Senior Secured Notes

Debt issuance costs - 5.750% Notes
Less: debt issuance costs, net

Long-term debt, net

(1) Beginning December 31, 2021 and quarterly thereafter, we will repay a principal amount of the Term Loan B equal to 0.25% of the initial aggregate principal of $1,325.0 million.
These scheduled principal repayments may be reduced by any voluntary or mandatory prepayments made in accordance with the credit agreement.

@

=

Interest on Term Loan B and Revolver B is calculated, at MPH's option, as (a) Term SOFR (or, with respect to the term loan facility only, 0.50%, whichever is higher), plus the
applicable SOFR adjustment, plus the applicable margin, or (b) the highest rate of (1) prime rate, (2) the federal funds effective rate, plus 0.50%, (3) the Term SOFR for an
interest period of one month, plus the applicable SOFR adjustment, plus 1.00% and (4) 0.50% for Term Loan B and 1.00% for Revolver B, in each case, plus an applicable
margin of 4.25% for Term Loan B and between 3.50% and 4.00% for Revolver B, depending on MPH's first lien debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio. The interest rate in effect for
Term Loan B was 9.86% as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

@3

<

The Senior Convertible PIK Notes are convertible into shares of the Company's Class A common stock based on a $13.00 conversion price, subject to customary anti-dilution
adjustments.

During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company purchased and cancelled $21.1 million of the Senior Convertible PIK Notes. The repurchases
resulted in the recognition of a gain on extinguishment of $5.9 million during the threesix months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, which are included in gain on
extinguishment of debt in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of (loss) incomeloss and comprehensive (loss) income.loss. No repurchases were
made during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
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As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company was in compliance with all of the debt covenants. See our discussion of Debt Covenants and Events
of Default provided in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

5.6. Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares

The Company classifies the Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares as a liability on its unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets as these
instruments are precluded from being indexed to our own stock given the terms allow for a settlement that does not meet the scope of the fixed-for-fixed exception in Accounting
Standards Codification 815.

The Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares were initially recorded at fair value on the date of consummation of the Transactions and are subsequently
adjusted to fair value at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value of the Unvested Founder Shares and unvested Private Placement Warrants is obtained using a Monte Carlo
model and the fair value of the remaining Private Placement Warrants is obtained using a Black Scholes model, together referenced as the "option pricing" model. The Company will
continue to adjust the liability for changes in fair value for the founder shares until the earlier of the re-vesting or forfeiture of these instruments. The Company will continue to adjust
the liability for changes in fair value for the Private Placement Warrants until the warrant is equity classified.
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As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the fair value of the Private Placement Warrants and the Unvested Founder Shares were:
(in thousands) (in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 (in thousands) June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Private Placement Warrants

Unvested Founder Shares

For the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the change in fair values was primarily due to the change in expected term and the decrease in the price of
the Company's Class A common stock over that period. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of (loss) incomeloss and comprehensive (loss)
income loss include (gains) losses related to the change in fair value of the Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares for the three and six months ended March
31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023 as follows:

Three Months Ended March

31,
Three Months Ended June Six Months Ended June
30, 30,
(in (in
(in thousands) thousands) 2024 2023 thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Private Placement Warrants
Unvested Founder Shares

(Gain) loss on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder
Shares

6.7. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurements are based on the premise that fair value represents an exit price representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, the following three-tier fair value hierarchy has been used in determining the
inputs used in measuring fair value:

* Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities on the reporting date.
* Level 2—Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets (Level 1), that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

¢ Level 3— Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the entity to develop its own assumptions.

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
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Financial instruments

Certain financial instruments which are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable, which
approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The financial instrument that potentially subjects the Company to concentrations of credit risk consists primarily of accounts
receivable.

Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 included money market funds of $20.0 million, which were valued based on Level 1
measurements using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company's carrying amount and fair value of long-term debt consisted of the following:
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
June 30, 2024

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
(in thousands) (in thousands) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value (in thousands) Amount  Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Liabilities:
Term Loan B, net of discount
Term Loan B, net of discount
Term Loan B, net of discount
Long-term Debt:
Term Loan B, net of discount (includes current portion)
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Term Loan B, net of discount (includes current portion)
Term Loan B, net of discount (includes current portion)
5.50% Senior Secured Notes

5.750% Notes

Senior Convertible PIK Notes, net of discount

Finance lease obligations

Total Liabilities

Total Long-term Debt

We estimate the fair value of long-term debt using quoted prices in active markets. As such, this is considered a Level 1 fair value measurement.
Recurring fair value measurements

The Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair value of these instruments was determined based on
significant inputs not observable in the market which would represent a level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy. The Company uses an option pricing simulation to
estimate the fair value of these instruments.

The Company records derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value, which represents the estimated amounts it would receive or pay upon termination of the derivative prior to
the scheduled expiration date. The fair value is derived from model-driven information based on observable Level 2 inputs, such as SOFR forward rates.

Non-recurring fair value measurements

We also measure certain non-financial assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, primarily goodwill and long-lived tangible and intangible assets, in connection with periodic
evaluations for potential impairment. We estimate the fair value of these assets using primarily unobservable inputs and, as such, these are considered Level 3 fair value
measurements. There were impairment charges of $519.1 million $553.7 million for these goodwill and $1,072.8 million for goodwill and long-lived intangible assets for the three and
six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, respectively, and none for the three and six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023.

Our non-marketable equity securities using the measurement alternative are adjusted to fair value on a non-recurring basis. Adjustments are made when observable
transactions for identical or similar investments of the same issuer occur, or due to impairment. These securities are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy because we
estimate the value based on valuation methods using the observable transaction price at the transaction date. At March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of these
alternative investments, recorded under Other assets, net in the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets, was $15.0 million. There were no write-ups due to observable
price changes or write-downs due to impairment in the current period.

7.

8. Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

The Company has certain irrevocable letters of credit used to satisfy real estate lease agreements for three of our offices in lieu of security deposits in the amount of $1.8 million
outstanding as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The Company

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
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also has an irrevocable letter of credit to satisfy the obligations of a captive insurance subsidiary in the amount of $6.1 million outstanding as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023.

Claims and Litigation

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits and other pending and threatened litigation and other adversarial matters as well as regulatory investigations, all of which have
arisen in the ordinary course of business. While the ultimate outcome with respect to such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company does not believe they will
result, individually or in the aggregate, in a material adverse effect upon our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

On July 11, 2024, we settled litigation filed in 2014 in which a dialysis company alleged that an entity we acquired in 2011 was liable for certain payments owed to the dialysis
provider. As a result of this settlement, we have recorded a receivable of $9.8 million for the expected recoveries from insurers in other current assets, with a corresponding increase
in accrued legal contingencies on our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and no impact to our unaudited condensed consolidated statements of loss and
comprehensive loss.

The Company has been named in numerous federal lawsuits asserting that, among other things, the Company is conspiring with commercial health insurance payors to
suppress out of network reimbursements in violation of applicable antitrust law. These lawsuits have been filed in the Southern District of New York, the Northern District of Illinois,
and the Northern District of California, naming the Company and, in certain cases, certain payors, as defendants. The lawsuits are in the process of being centralized in the Northern
District of lllinois pursuant to a transfer order issued by the federal Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation. We believe these lawsuits are without merit and intend to vigorously
defend the Company.
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We accrue for costs associated with certain contingencies, including, but not limited to, settlement of legal proceedings, regulatory compliance matters and self-insurance
exposures when such costs are probable and reasonably estimable. Such accruals are included in accrued legal contingencies on the accompanying unaudited condensed
consolidated balance sheets. In addition, we accrue for legal fees incurred in defense of asserted litigation and regulatory matters as such legal fees are incurred. To the extent it is
probable under our existing insurance coverage that we are able to recover losses and legal fees related to contingencies, we record such recoveries concurrently with the accrual
of the related loss or legal fees. Significant management judgment is required to estimate the amounts of such contingent liabilities and the related insurance recoveries. In our
determination of the probability and ability to estimate contingent liabilities and related insurance recoveries we consider the following: litigation exposure based on currently
available information, consultations with external legal counsel, adequacy and applicability of existing insurance coverage, appeal bonds or similar instrument posted, and other
pertinent facts and circumstances regarding the contingency. Liabilities established to provide for contingencies are adjusted as further information develops, circumstances change,
or contingencies are resolved; and such changes are recorded in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of (loss) income loss and comprehensive (loss)
income loss during the period of the change and appropriately reflected in accrued legal contingencies on the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets.

8.9. Shareholder's Equity

On February 27, 2023, the Board approved a repurchase program, authorizing, but not obligating, the Company's repurchase of up to an aggregate amount of $100.0 million of
its Class A common stock from time to time through December 31, 2023. On November 8, 2023, the Board extended the repurchase program through December 31, 2024. As of
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company has spent $25.6 million, including commissions, for the repurchase of its Class A common stock as part of this program using cash on
hand, of which $10.4 million was spent during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No repurchases were made during the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

On May 8, 2023, the Company issued stock consideration of 21,588,652 shares of Company Class A common stock for the acquisition of BST.

10. Basic and Diluted (Loss) Earnings Loss Per Share
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings loss per share was calculated as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in thousands, except number of shares and per share data) 2024 2023

Numerator for earnings per share calculation

Net (loss) income $ (539,689) $ 209
Denominator for earnings per share calculation
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic 646,334,247 638,721,991
Effect of stock-based compensation — 2,179,298
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted 646,334,247 640,901,289

(Loss) Income per share - basic and diluted:
Net (loss) income per share —basic $ (0.83) $ 0.00
Net (loss) income per share — diluted $ (0.83) $ 0.00

As of the three months ended March 31, 2023, we have excluded from the calculation of diluted net (loss) income per share the instruments whose effect would have been anti-
dilutive, including (i) 58,500,000 warrants outstanding, (ii) 100,000,000 shares which may be issued upon conversion of the Senior Convertible PIK Notes, and (iii) 12,404,080
Unvested Founder Shares. Additionally, we have excluded from the calculation of diluted net (loss) income per share awards within the 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan, whose effect
would have been anti-dilutive of 15,880,120 for the three months ended March 31, 2023.

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION
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Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(in thousands, except number of shares and per share data) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Numerator for earnings per share calculation
Net loss $ (576,727) $ (36,370) $ (1,116,416) $ (36,161)
Denominator for earnings per share calculation
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic 644,679,833 643,339,328 645,499,738 640,996,659
Effect of stock-based compensation — — — —
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted 644,679,833 643,339,328 645,499,738 640,996,659
(Loss) Income per share - basic and diluted:
Net (loss) income per share — basic $ (0.89) $ (0.06) $ 1.73) $ (0.06)
Net (loss) income per share — diluted $ (0.89) $ 0.06) $ (1.73) $ (0.06)
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For the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per
share, as their effect would have been anti-dilutive given the Company's losses incurred. Therefore, the weighted average number of shares outstanding used to calculate both
basic and diluted net loss per share is the same.

10.11. Related Party Transactions

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of (loss) incomeloss and comprehensive (loss) incomeloss include related party expenses of
$36 $23 thousand and $63 $59 thousand for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. $92 thousand and $155 thousand for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2023. These expenses are associated with a software license from Abacus Insights, Inc., as well as customer service software and captive
management services from companies controlled by Hellman & Friedman LLC.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets include prepaid expenses of $21 $37 thousand and $36 thousand from related parties as of March 31,
2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of the Company'’s financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and together with the information included in the Company’s 2023 Annual
Report. Certain information contained in the discussion and analysis set forth below includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties; the results described
below are not necessatrily indicative of the results to be expected in any future periods.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-looking Statements

All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this Quarterly Report including, without limitation, statements under this “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” regarding the Company'’s financial position, business strategy and the plans and objectives of management for future
operations, are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as
amended, including, in particular, statements about our plans, strategies and prospects as well as estimates of industry growth for the next quarter and beyond. When used in this
Quarterly Report, words such as “believes,” “estimates,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “seeks, plans,” “may,” “will” or “should” or, in each case, their negative or
other variations or comparable terminology represent forward-looking statements that include matters that are not historical facts. They may appear in a number of places
throughout this Quarterly Report and these forward-looking statements reflect management's expectations regarding our future growth, results of operations, operational and

projects,” “intends,

financial performance and business prospects and opportunities. Such forward-looking statements are based on available current market material and management's expectations,
beliefs and forecasts concerning future events impacting our business. Factors that may impact such forward-looking statements include:

* loss of our customers, particularly our largest customers;

* interruptions or security breaches of our information technology systems and other cybersecurity attacks;

« the impact of reduced claims volumes resulting from a nationwide outage by a vendor used by our customers;

« the ability to achieve the goals of our strategic plans and recognize the anticipated strategic, operational, growth and efficiency benefits when expected;
« our ability to enter new lines of business and broaden the scope of our services;

« the loss of key members of our management team or inability to maintain sufficient qualified personnel;

« our ability to continue to attract, motivate and retain a large number of skilled employees, and adapt to the effects of inflationary pressure on wages;

« trends in the U.S. healthcare system, including recent trends of unknown duration of reduced healthcare utilization and increased patient financial responsibility for services;
« effects of competition;

« effects of pricing pressure;

« our ability to identify, complete and successfully integrate acquisitions;

< the inability of our customers to pay for our services;

« changes in our industry and in industry standards and technology;

« our ability to protect proprietary information, processes, and applications;

« our ability to maintain the licenses or right of use for the software we use;

« ourinability to expand our network infrastructure;

« our ability to obtain additional financing;

« our ability to pay interest and principal on our notes and other indebtedness;

* lowering or withdrawal of our credit ratings;
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« adverse outcomes related to litigation or governmental proceedings;

« inability to preserve or increase our existing market share or the size of our preferred provider organization networks;
« decreases in discounts from providers;

* pressure to limit access to preferred provider networks;

« the loss of our existing relationships with providers;

< changes in our regulatory environment, including healthcare law and regulations;

« the expansion of privacy and security laws;

« heightened enforcement activity by government agencies;

« the possibility that we may be adversely affected by other political, economic, business, and/or competitive factors;
« changes in accounting principles or the incurrence of impairment charges;

« our ability to remediate any material weaknesses or maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting;

« other factors disclosed in this Quarterly Report; and

e other factors beyond our control.

The forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effects on our business. There can be no
assurance that future developments affecting our business will be those that we have anticipated. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties (some
of which are beyond our control) or other assumptions that may cause actual results or performance to be materially different from those expressed or implied by these forward-
looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those factors referred to under the heading “Risk Factors” in Part Il, Item 1A of this Quarterly Report
or as described in our 2023 Annual Report. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of the assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
in material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. We do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

Company Overview

MultiPlan is a market leading provider of data analytics and technology-enabled solutions designed to bring affordability, efficiency, and fairness to the U.S. healthcare industry.
Through our proprietary data and technology platform, we provide out-of-network cost management, payment and revenue integrity, data and decision science, business-to-
business healthcare payments and other services to the payors of healthcare, which are primarily health insurers and their administrative-services-only platforms, self-insured
employers, federal and state government-sponsored health plans (collectively "Payors") and other health plan sponsors (typically through their health plan administrators), and,
indirectly, the plan members who are the consumers of healthcare services.

Although the end beneficiary of our services are employers and other plan sponsors and their health plan members, our direct customers are typically Payors, including ASOs
and third-party administrators (“TPAs"), who go to market with our services to those end customers. We offer these Payors a single interface to our services, which are used in
combination or individually to reduce the medical cost burden on their health plan customers, by lowering the per-unit cost of medical services incurred, managing the utilization of
medical services, and increasing the likelihood that the services are reimbursed without error and accepted by the provider. We are a technology-enabled service provider and
transaction processor and do not deliver health-care services, provide or manage healthcare services, provide care or care management, or adjudicate or pay claims.

The Company, through its operating subsidiary, MultiPlan, Inc., offers its solutions nationally through a range of service lines, which include:

* Analytics-Based Services reduce medical cost through data-driven algorithms and insights that detect claims over-charges and either negotiate or recommend fair
reimbursement for out-of-network medical costs using a variety of data sources and pricing algorithms. Our Analytics-Based Services claim pricing services are generally
priced based on a percentage of savings achieved. Also included in this category are services that enable lower cost health plans that feature reference-based pricing either
in conjunction with or in place of a provider network. These services are generally priced at a bundled PEPM rate;

* Network-Based Services reduce medical cost by providing access to contracted discounts with healthcare providers with whom Payors do not have a contractual
relationship, through our expansive network of over 1.4 million healthcare providers, which forms one of the largest independent preferred provider organizations in the
United States. Our Network-Based Services are priced based on either a percentage of savings achieved or at a per employee/member per month fee. This service
category also includes customized network development and management services for Payors seeking to expand their network footprint using outsourced services. These
services are generally priced on a per provider contract or other project-based price;

* Payment and Revenue Integrity Services reduce medical cost through data, technology, and clinical expertise deployed to identify and remove improper and unnecessary
charges before or after claims are paid, or to identify and help restore premium dollars underpaid by CMS for government health plans caused by discrepancies with
enroliment-related data. Payment and Revenue Integrity Services are generally priced based on a percentage of savings achieved; and

¢ Data and Decision Science Services reduce medical costs through a next generation suite of solutions that apply modern methods of data science to produce descriptive,
predictive, and prescriptive analytics that enable customers to optimize decision-making about plan design and network configurations and to support decision-making to
improve clinical outcomes, plan performance, and competitive positioning. We formed this new service category in the second quarter of 2023 and accelerated its
development through the acquisition of BST. Data and Decisions Science Services are generally priced based on a subscription, licensing, or per-member-per month basis.
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¢ Additionally, in 2023 the Company entered into a partnership agreement with ECHO Health, Inc. ("ECHO"), which through a joint marketing and services agreement adds
payment processing of healthcare provider claims as well as payments made to other service providers.

We believe our solutions provide a strong value proposition to Payors, their health plan customers and healthcare consumers, as well as to providers. Overall, our service
offerings aim to reduce healthcare costs in a manner that is orderly, efficient, and fair to all parties. In addition, because in most instances the fee for our services is linked to the
savings we identify, our revenue model is aligned with the interests of our customers. For the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and March 31, 2023 June 30,
2023 and year ended December 31, 2023, our comprehensive services identified approximately $5.7 billion$11.9 billion, $5.6 billion $11.2 billion, and $22.9 billion in potential
medical cost savings, respectively.

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations
Medical Cost Savings

Our business and revenues are driven by the ability to lower medical costs through claims claim savings for our customers. The volume of medical charges associated with
those claims is a primary driver of our ability to generate claim savings.

The following table presents the medical charges processed and the potential savings identified across our products and revenue streams, including PEPM and PSAV, for the
periods presented:
Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,
(in billions)
(in billions)
(in billions)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended June
June 30, Change 30, Change

(in millions)

Commercial Health Plans

Commercial Health Plans

Commercial Health Plans

Medical charges processed

Medical charges processed

Medical charges processed $ 19,841 $ $18,744 5.9% 5.9% $38,146 $ $37,150 2.7% 2.7%

Potential medical
Potential medical cost savings cost savings $5,828 $ $5,351 8.9% 8.9% $11,228 $ $10,618 5.7% 5.7%

Potential medical cost savings
Potential medical cost savings
Potential savings as a % of charges
Potential savings as a % of charges
Potential savings as a % of charges

Payment & Revenue Integrity, Property &
Casualty, and Other

Payment & Revenue Integrity, Property &
Casualty, and Other

Payment & Revenue Integrity, Property &
Casualty, and Other

Medical charges processed
Medical charges processed
Medical charges processed $ 25,420 $ $24,332 4.5% 4.5% $48,635 $ $45,653 6.5% 6.5%

Potential medical
Potential medical cost savings cost savings $ 345 $ $ 308 12.0% 12.0% $ 681 $ $ 611 115% 11.5%

Potential medical cost savings
Potential medical cost savings
Potential savings as a % of charges
Potential savings as a % of charges

Potential savings as a % of charges
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Total

Total

Total

Medical charges processed

Medical charges processed

Medical charges processed $ 45,261 $ $43,076 5.1% 5.1% $86,781 $ $82,803 4.8% 4.8%

Potential medical
Potential medical cost savings cost savings $6,173 $ $5,659 9.1% 9.1% $11,909 $ $11,229 6.1% 6.1%

Potential medical cost savings
Potential medical cost savings
Potential savings as a % of charges
Potential savings as a % of charges
Potential savings as a % of charges
Medical charges processed represent the aggregate dollar amount of claims processed by our cost management and payment and revenue integrity solutions in the period

presented. The dollar amount of the claim for the purposes of this calculation is the dollar amount of the claim prior to any reductions that may be made as a result of the claim being
processed by our solutions.

Potential medical cost savings represent the aggregate amount of potential savings in dollars identified by our cost management and payment and revenue integrity solutions in
the period presented. Since certain of our fees are based on the amount of savings achieved by our customers, and our customers are the final adjudicator of the claims and may
choose not to reduce claims or reduce claims by only a portion of the potential savings identified, potential medical cost savings may not directly correlate with the amount of fees
earned in connection with the processing of such claims.

Components of Results of Operations
Revenues

We generate revenues from several sources including: (i) Network-Based Services that process claims at a discount compared to billed fee-for-service rates and by using an
extensive network, (ii) Analytics-Based Services that use our leading and proprietary information technology platform to offer customers solutions to reduce medical costs, and (iii)
Payment and Revenue Integrity Services that use data, technology, and clinical expertise to identify improper, unnecessary and excessive charges. Payors typically compensate us
through either a PSAV achieved or a PEPM rate. Approximately 90% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2023 was based on a PSAV achieved rate.

Costs of Services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization of intangible assets)

Costs of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization of intangible assets) consist of all costs specifically associated with claims processing activities for customers,
sales and marketing, and the development and maintenance of our networks, analytics-based services, and payment and revenue integrity services. Two of the largest components
in costs of services are personnel expenses and access and bill review fees. Access and bill review fees include fees for accessing non-owned third-party provider networks,
expenses associated with vendor fees for database access and systems technology used to reprice claims, and outsourced services. Third-party network expenses are fees paid to
non-owned provider networks used to supplement our owned network assets to provide more network claim savings to our customers.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses include corporate management and governance functions composed of general management, legal, treasury, tax, real estate, financial
reporting, auditing, benefits and human resource administration, communications, public relations, billing, and information management. In addition, general and administrative
expenses include taxes, insurance, advertising, transaction costs, and other general expenses.

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense consists of depreciation and amortization of property and equipment related to our investments in leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment,
computer hardware and software, and internally generated capitalized software development costs. We provide for depreciation and amortization on property and equipment using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of depreciable assets over their estimated useful lives.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets includes amortization of the value of our customer relationships, provider network, technology, and trademarks which were identified in valuing
the intangible assets in connection with the June 6, 2016 acquisition by Hellman & Friedman Capital Partners VIII, L.P. and its affiliates, as well as the subsequent acquisitions of
BST, HST and DHP by the Company.

Loss on Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

A loss on impairment is recorded in connection with the quantitative impairment testing of our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles and is performed annually or whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable, and their fair value is less than their carrying value.

Interest Expense
Interest expense consists of accrued interest and related interest payments on our outstanding long-term debt and amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts.

Interest Income

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 26/49
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Interest income consists primarily of bank interest.
(Gain) Loss Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

The Company recognizes a (gain) lossgain on extinguishment of debt for the difference between the reacquisition price of the debt and the net carrying amount of the
extinguished debt.

Gain (Loss) on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares

The Company re-measures, at each reporting period, the fair value of the Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares. The changes in fair value are primarily
due to the change in the stock price of the Company's Class A common stock and the passage of time over that period.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense Benefit
Income tax (benefit) expense benefit consists of federal, state, and local income taxes.
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted EPS to evaluate our financial performance. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted EPS are financial measures that are not
presented in accordance with GAAP. We believe the presentation of these non-GAAP financial measures provides useful information to investors in assessing our financial condition
and results of operations across reporting periods on a consistent basis by excluding items that we do not believe are indicative of our financial operating results of our core
business.

These measurements of financial performance have important limitations as analytical tools and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our
results as reported under GAAP. Additionally, they may not be comparable to other similarly titted measures of other companies. Some of these limitations are:

« such measures do not reflect our cash expenditures or future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments;

« such measures do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs;

« such measures do not reflect the significant interest expense, or cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments on our debt;

« such measures do not reflect any cash requirements for any future replacement of depreciated assets;

« such measures do not reflect the impact of stock-based compensation upon our results of operations;

* such measures do not reflect our income tax (benefit) expense or the cash requirements to pay our income taxes;

e such measures do not reflect the impact of certain cash charges resulting from matters we consider not to be indicative of our ongoing operations; and

< other companies in our industry may calculate these measures differently from how we do, limiting their usefulness as a comparative measure.
In evaluating EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted EPS, you should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses similar to those eliminated in the presentation.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted EPS are widely used measures of corporate profitability eliminating the effects of financing and capital expenditures from the operating
results. We define EBITDA as net (loss) income loss adjusted for interest expense, interest income, income tax (benefit) expense, depreciation, amortization of intangible assets,
and non-income taxes. We define Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA further adjusted to eliminate the impact of certain items that we do not consider to be indicative of our core
business, including other expenses, net, (gain) loss on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares, transaction related expenses, (gain) loss
on debt extinguishment, (gain) loss on investments, loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, and stock-based compensation. See our unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for more information regarding these adjustments. Adjusted EBITDA is used in our agreements governing our
outstanding indebtedness for debt covenant compliance purposes. Our Adjusted EBITDA calculation is consistent with the definition of Adjusted EBITDA used in our debt
instruments.

Adjusted EPS is used in reporting to our Board and executive management and as a component of the measurement of our performance. We believe that this measure provides
useful information to investors because it is the profitability measure we use to evaluate earnings performance on a comparable year-to-year basis. Adjusted EPS is defined as net
(loss) income loss adjusted for amortization of intangible assets, stock-based compensation, transaction related expenses, (gain) loss on debt extinguishment, (gain) loss on
investments, other expense, (gain) loss on change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares, loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets,
and tax effect of adjustments to arrive at Adjusted net income divided by our basic weighted average number of shares outstanding.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net (loss) income loss to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the periods presented:
Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,
(in thousands)

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(in thousands) (in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Net (loss) income
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 27149

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Net loss

Net loss

Net loss

Adjustments:
Interest expense
Interest expense
Interest expense

Interest income

Benefit for income taxes

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible assets

Non-income taxes
EBITDA

Adjustments:

Other expenses, netq)

Other expenses, netq)
Other expenses, netq)

Integration expenses

Change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and unvested founder shares

Transaction-related expenses

Gain on extinguishment of debt
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Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Stock-based compensation
Stock-based compensation
Stock-based compensation

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA

(1) "Other expenses, (income), net" represent miscellaneous non-recurring income, miscellaneous non-recurring expense, gain or loss on disposal of assets, impairment of other
assets, gain or loss on disposal of leases, tax penalties, and non-integration related severance costs.

Material differences between MultiPlan Corporation and MPH for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 include
differences in interest expense, change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares, gain on extinguishment of debt, and stock-based compensation.

For the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 June 30, 2024, interest expense for MultiPlan Corporation was higher than MPH by $20.4 $19.3 million
and $39.6 million, respectively, due to interest expense incurred by MultiPlan Corporation on the Senior Convertible PIK Notes. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2023,
interest expense for MultiPlan Corporation was higher than MPH by $20.6 million and $41.2 million, respectively, due to interest expense incurred by MultiPlan Corporation on the
Senior Convertible PIK Notes.

The change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares, gain on extinguishment of debt, and stock-based compensation (excluding the
employee stock purchase plan) are recorded in the parent company MultiPlan Corporation and not in the MPH operating company and therefore represents represent differences
between MultiPlan Corporation and MPH.

In the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 June 30, 2024, EBITDA expenses for MultiPlan Corporation were lower than MPH by $0.6 $0.7 million
and $1.3 million, respectively, primarily due to insurance premiums paid to our captive insurance company, net of related captive insurance company costs, which are eliminated in
the consolidated financial reporting of MultiPlan Corporation. In the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, EBITDA expenses for MultiPlan Corporation were lower than MPH
by $1.0 million and $1.9 million, respectively, primarily due to insurance premiums paid to our captive insurance company, net of related captive insurance company costs, which are
eliminated in the consolidated financial reporting of MultiPlan Corporation.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net (loss) income loss to Adjusted EPS for the periods presented:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

(in thousands, except share and per share Junej30, June 30,

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) amounts) 2024 2023 2024 2023

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

2024

2024

Net (loss) income

Net (loss) income

Net (loss) income

Adjustments:

Adjustments:

Net loss

Net loss

Net loss

Adjustments:
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Other expenses (income), net
Other expenses (income), net
Other expenses (income), net
Integration expenses
Integration expenses
Other expenses, net

Integration expenses
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Change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and unvested
founder shares

Change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and unvested
founder shares

Change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and unvested
founder shares

Transaction-related expenses
Transaction-related expenses
Transaction-related expenses
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Stock-based compensation
Stock-based compensation
Stock-based compensation
Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Estimated tax effect of adjustments
Estimated tax effect of adjustments
Estimated tax effect of adjustments
Adjusted net income
Adjusted net income
Adjusted net income
Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic
Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic
Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic 644,679,833 643,339,328 645,499,738 640,996,659
Net income per share — basic
Net income per share — basic
Net income per share — basic
Adjusted EPS
Adjusted EPS
Adjusted EPS

Factors Affecting the Comparability of our Results of Operations

As a result of a number of factors, our historical results of operations may not be comparable to our results of operations in future periods and may not be directly comparable
from period to period. Set forth below is a brief discussion of the key factors impacting the comparability of our results of operations.

Cyberattack on U.S. Healthcare Infrastructure

In first quarter 2024, there was a cyberattack on a critical piece of the U.S. healthcare infrastructure from a data security breach that disrupted claims flows upstream from our
services. While it is difficult to precisely quantify the claims impact, we believe this delayed the receipt of certain medical claims and contributed to lower medical claims volumes in
first and second quarter of 2024.

BST Acquisition

On May 8, 2023, the Company acquired BST, a company offering a next generation suite of solutions that apply modern methods of data science to produce descriptive,
predictive and prescriptive analytics that enable customers to optimize decision-making about plan design and network configurations and to support decision-making to improve
clinical outcomes, plan performance, and competitive positioning.

The results of operations and financial condition of BST have been included in the Company's consolidated results from the date of acquisition. Acquired expenses from the
acquisition of BST are included in costs of services and general and administrative expenses for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

Debt Repurchase and Cancellation

During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company repurchased and cancelled $21.1 million of the Senior Convertible PIK Notes, resulting in the
recognition of a gain on debt extinguishment of $5.9 million, $5.9 million, representing the difference between the purchase price including associated fees and the net carrying
amount of the extinguished debt.
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During the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company repurchased and cancelled $137.8 million of the 5.750% Notes, resulting in the recognition of a
gain on debt extinguishment of $36.8 million, representing the difference between the purchase price including associated fees and the net carrying amount of the extinguished

debt.

In the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company repurchased and cancelled $184.0 million of the 5.750% Notes and $25.0 million of the Senior Convertible PIK Notes,
resulting in the recognition of a gain on debt extinguishment of $46.9 million and $7.1 million, respectively. This gain on debt extinguishment represents the difference between the

purchase price including associated fees and the net carrying amount of the extinguished debt.
Results of Operations for the Three and Six Months Ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023

The following table provides the results of operations for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended June 30, Change

Six Months E

(in thousands)  (in 2024 2023 $

(in thousands)
(in thousands)
Revenues
Revenues
Revenues

Network-
Based
Services
Network-
Based
Services

Network-
Based

Services $ 45,723 $ $ 57,148 $ $ (11,425) (20.0)
Analytics-

Based

Analytics-
Based
Services Services 159,896 151,441 151,441

8,455 8,455 5.6

Analytics-
Based
Services
Analytics-
Based
Services
Payment and
Revenue

Integrity
Services

Payment and
Revenue
Integrity
Services 27,857 29,402 29,402 (1,545) (1,545) (5.3)

Payment and

Revenue

Integrity

Services

Payment and

Revenue

Integrity

Services
Total

Revenues

Total
Revenues

Total
Revenues

Total

Revenues $233,476 $ $237,991 $ $(4,515) (1.9
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Costs of
services
(exclusive of
depreciation
and
amortization
of intangible
assets
shown
below)

Costs of
services
(exclusive of
depreciation
and
amortization
of intangible
assets
shown
below)

Costs of
services
(exclusive of
depreciation
and
amortization
of intangible
assets
shown
below) 59,007

61,369 59,007

General and
administrative
expenses
General and
administrative
expenses
General and
administrative
expenses 34,551

39,750 39,750

Depreciation
expense

Depreciation

expense 21,811 18,901

Depreciation

expense

Depreciation

expense

Amortization of

intangible

assets

Amortization of
intangible

assets

Amortization of Amortization of
intangible intangible
assets assets

85,971 85,626

Loss on
impairment of
goodwill and
intangible
assets

Loss on
impairment of
goodwill and
intangible

assets 563,701 —

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

18,901

85,626

2,362

(5,199)

2,910

345

553,701

2,362

(5,199)

2,910

345

553,701

4.0

(13.1)

15.4

0.4
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Loss on
impairment of
goodwill and
intangible
assets
Loss on
impairment of
goodwill and
intangible
assets
Operating
(loss)
income
Operating
(loss)
income

Operating Operating
(loss) (loss)

income income (523,927) 34,707

Interest Interest

expense expense 81,129 82,475
Interest

expense

Interest

expense

Interest Interest

income income (551) (2,366)
Interest

income

Interest
income

Gain on
extinguishment
of debt

Gain on
extinguishment
of debt

Gain on Gain on
extinguishment extinguishment
of debt of debt — —

(Gain) loss on
change in fair
value of
Private
Placement
Warrants and
Unvested
Founder
Shares

(Gain) loss on
change in fair
value of
Private
Placement
Warrants and
Unvested
Founder
Shares
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34,707

82,475

(2,366)

(558,634)

(1,346)

1,815

(558,634)

(1,346)

1,815

(1.6)

76.7

NM

NM

NM

(1.6) %

76.7 %

NM
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(Gain) loss on
change in fair
value of
Private
Placement
Warrants and
Unvested
Founder
Shares (259) 763 763 (1,022) (1,022) 133.9 1339 %
Net (loss)
income
before taxes
Net (loss)
income
before taxes
Net (loss)
income
before taxes
(Benefit)
provision for
income taxes
(Benefit)
provision for
income taxes
(Benefit)
provision for
income taxes
Net (loss)
income
Net (loss)
income
Net (loss)
income
Net loss
before taxes (604,246) (46,165) (558,081) NM (1,165,911)
Benefit for
income taxes (27,519) (9,795) (17,724) 180.9 % (49,495)
Net loss $ (576,727) $(36,370) $(540,357) NM $(1,116,416)

NM = Not meaningful
Revenues

Revenues decreased by $2.1 million $4.5 million, or 0.9% 1.9%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as compared to the three months ended March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023. This decrease in revenues was due to decreases the decrease in Network-Based Services revenues of $11.0 million $11.4 million and the decrease in Payment
and Revenue Integrity Services Revenues of $1.5 million, offset by increases the increase in Analytics-Based Services revenues of $7.7 million $8.5 million during this time period.

Revenues decreased by $6.6 million, or 1.4%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. This decrease in revenues was
due to the decrease in Network-Based Services revenues of $22.5 million and the decrease in Payment and Revenue Integrity Services revenues of $1.3 million $0.3 million, offset
by the increase in Analytics-Based Services revenues of $16.1 million during this time period, as explained below.

Network-Based Services revenues decreased $11.0 million $11.4 million, or 19.3% 20.0%, in the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023. Approximately $6 million $3 million of the decrease was primarily related to customer and program attrition, and approximately $5
million $8 million of the reduction was from substitution of Analytics-Based Services in lieu of Network-Based Services and lower medical savings on PSAV claims received from
customers and customers. Medical savings were impacted by reduced claims volumes from a cyberattack at a major claims clearinghouse, which disrupted claims flows across the
healthcare industry and ultimately downstream to our platform. These lower volumes contributed to decreasesthe decrease in Network-Based Services PSAV revenues of $9.7
million $9.6 million and decreases the decrease in PEPM network revenues of $1.8 million $2.1 million, offset by increasesthe increase in other network revenues of $0.5 million $0.3
million.
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Network-Based Services revenues decreased $22.5 million, or 19.6%, in the six months ended June 30, 2024, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023.
Approximately $9 million of the decrease was primarily related to customer and program attrition, and approximately $13 million of the reduction was from substitution of Analytics-
Based Services in lieu of Network-Based Services and lower medical savings on PSAV claims received from customers. Medical savings were impacted by reduced claims volumes
from a cyberattack at a major claims clearinghouse, which disrupted claims flows across the healthcare industry and ultimately downstream to our platform. These lower volumes
contributed to the decrease in Network-Based Services PSAV revenues of $19.4 million and the decrease in PEPM network revenues of $3.9 million, offset by the increase in other
network revenues of $0.8 million.

Analytics-Based Services revenues increased $7.7 million $8.5 million, or 5.0%5.6%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023. This increase in revenues was primarily due to increasesthe increase in Analytics-Based Services PSAV revenues of $5.3 million as a
result of the increase in medical savings on PSAV claims and the increase in PEPM and other revenues of $6.4 million $3.1 million, including an increase in acquired revenues of
$3.6 million $1.7 million from the acquisition of BST and increases BST.

Analytics-Based Services revenues increased $16.1 million, or 5.3%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. This
increase in revenues was primarily due to the increase in Analytics-Based Services PSAV revenues of $1.3 million.

$6.6 million as a result of increases in medical savings on PSAV claims and the increase in PEPM and other revenues of $9.5 million, including an increase in
acquired revenues of $5.6 million from the acquisition of BST.

Payment and Revenue Integrity Services revenues increased decreased by $1.3 million $1.5 million, or 4.8% 5.3%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024,
as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023. This increase decrease was primarily in our pre-payment lines of business, offset by increases in our post-
payment and revenue integrity lines of business. The decrease in Payment and Revenue Integrity Services was primarily in our PSAV revenues which declined by $1.6 million.

Payment and Revenue Integrity Services revenues decreased by $0.3 million, or 0.5%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024, as compared to the six months ended June 30,
2023. This decrease was primarily in our pre-payment lines of business, contributing to offset by increases in our post-payment and revenue integrity lines of business. The
decrease in Payment and Revenue Integrity Services was primarily in our PSAV revenues of $1.3 million which declined by $0.3 million.

Costs of Services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization of intangible assets)

Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended March 31,
(in thousands)

(in thousands)

Three Months Six Months Ended
Ended June 30, Change June 30, Change
(in thousands) (in thousands) 2024 2023 $ % 2024 2023 $
Personnel Personnel
expenses expenses
excluding excluding
stock-based  stock-based
compensation compensation $49,589 $ $47,960 $ $1,629 3.4 3.4 % $ 99,486 $ $ 94236 $ $5,250 5.6
Personnel
expenses
excluding
stock-based
compensation
Personnel
expenses
excluding
stock-based
compensation
Stock-based
compensation
Stock-based
compensation
Stock-based ~ Stock-based
compensation compensation 2,299 1,533 1,533 766 766 50.0 50.0 % 4,054 2,417 2,417 1,637 1,637 67.
Personnel Personnel
expenses expenses
including including
stock-based  stock-based
compensation compensation 51,888 49,493 49,493 2,395 2,395 4.8 4.8 % 103,540 96,653 96,653 6,887 6,887 7.
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Personnel
expenses
including
stock-based
compensation

Personnel
expenses
including
stock-based
compensation

Access and
bill review
fees

Access and
bill review
fees

Access and
bill review
fees

Other costs of
services
Other costs of
services
Other costs of
services

Total costs of
services

Total costs of
services

Total costs of
services

Access and
bill review

fees 4,670 5304 5304 (634)

Other costs of

services 4,811 4,210 4,210 601

Total costs of

services $61,369 $

$59,007 $

$2,362

(634)

601

(12.0)

14.3

(12.0)%

14.3 %

9,571

8,335

4.0

%

$121,446

Il &

9,799

7,405

9,799 (228) (228) (2.
7,405 930 930 12.
$113,857 $ $7589 6.7

The increases in costs of services of $5.2 million $2.4 million and $7.6 million, or 9.5%, respectively for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as
compared to the three and six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, were primarily due to increases in personnel expenses related to increased employee headcount and
year-over-year increases in compensation and related benefits, including increases in personnel costs from the acquisition of BST of $1.5 million $1.1 million and $2.6 million for the
three and six months ended March 31, 2024. June 30, 2024, respectively. BST contributed $2.1 million $2.8 million and $4.9 million to total costs of services in the three and six
months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, respectively as compared to $1.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023.

General and Administrative Expenses

(in thousands)

(in thousands)

(in thousands)

General and
administrative
expenses
excluding
stock-based
compensation
and
transaction-
related
expenses

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,
Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Change

Six Months
Ended June 30,

Change

2024 2023 $

2024

General and
administrative

expenses

excluding

stock-based
compensation

and

transaction-

related

$29,533 $ $29,638 $

expenses $ (105)

(0.4)

(0.4)
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General and
administrative
expenses
excluding
stock-based
compensation
and
transaction-
related
expenses

General and
administrative
expenses
excluding
stock-based
compensation
and
transaction-
related
expenses
Stock-based
compensation
Stock-based
compensation

Stock-based
compensation
Transaction-
related

Stock-based
compensation 5,018 3,294 3,294 1,724
Transaction-

related

1,724

52.3

52.3 %

8,957 6,105

expenses expenses — 6,818 6,818 (6,818) (6,818) (100.0) (100.0)% — 7,836
Transaction-
related

expenses
Transaction-
related
expenses
Total general
and
administrative
expenses
Total general
and
administrative
expenses

Total general  Total general
and and
administrative administrative

expenses expenses $34,551 $ $39,750 $ $(5,199) (13.1) (13.2) %  $69,408 $

$71,217  $

6,105 2,852 2,852

7,836 (7,836) (7,836)

$(1,809) (2.5)

The increases decrease in general and administrative expenses of $3.4 million $5.2 million, or 10.8% 13.1%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023 were June 30, 2023 was primarily due to increasesthe decrease in transaction costs of $6.8 million, partially offset by the

increase in stock-based compensation of $1.7 million.

The decrease in general and administrative expenses of $1.8 million, or 2.5%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023
was primarily due to the decrease in transaction costs of $7.8 million, decrease in insurance of $1.0 million, and $17.8 million increased capitalized software development, partially
offset by the increase in personnel expenses of $9.6 million $17.5 million, professional fees of $4.0 million, equipment lease and maintenance of $2.0 million and net increases in
other expenses of $1.3 million. The increase in personnel expenses related to increases in employee headcount, year-over-year increases in compensation, and related fringe
benefits, stock-based compensation, and contract labor, including increases in equipment lease stock-based compensation of $2.9 million. BST contributed $1.4 million and
maintenance of $1.0 million, and acquired net$2.4 million to total general and administrative expenses from BST of $0.9 millionin the three and six months ended June 30, 2024,
offset by $7.6 million higher capitalized software developmentrespectively, as compared to $1.5 million for the three and decreases in transaction costs of $1.0 million six months

ended June 30, 2023.
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Depreciation Expense

The increase increases in depreciation expenses of $2.8 million $2.9 million, or 15.4%, and $5.7 million, or 15.3%, in depreciation expense for the three and six months ended
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, respectively, as compared to the three and six months ended March 31, 2023 was June 30, 2023, were due to purchases of property and equipment,
including internally generated capitalized software, partially offset by assets that were written-off or became fully depreciated in the period.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

The increaseincreases in amortization of intangible assets for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 as compared to the three and six months
endedMarch 31,June 30, 2023 was were primarily due to the acquisition of BST and the intangibles acquired in the transaction.

Loss on Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

For the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, in connection with quantitative impairment testing performed on our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles,
we recorded a $519.1 million loss on impairment of goodwill of $553.7 million and intangible assets. This

amount includes $516.4 million for the loss on impairment of goodwill, and $1,070.1 million, respectively. A $2.7 million for the loss on impairment of trade names. names was
recorded for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and no impairment was recorded for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The loss on impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets was primarily due to the use of lower projected cash flows, lower EBITDA multiples and the use of a higher discount rate in response to significant declines in the stock price,
and lower EBITDA multiples. There were no material changes in the forecasted revenues and expenses utilized in the analysis compared to November 1, 2023. estimation
uncertainty of our cash flow projections.

Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense of $1.2 million, or 1.5% $1.3 million and $2.6 million, for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, respectively, as
compared to the three and six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 were primarily due to reductions in interest expense due to the swap rate agreements reducing our total
interest on the Term Loan B for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, and to a lower debt balance primarily due to the repurchase and cancellation of our
5.750% Notes in 2023 and Senior Convertible PIK Notes offset by the increase in the interest rate on our Term Loan B. While our 2023 and 2024. Our annualized weighted average
cash interest rate increased decreased by 0.06% 0.09% across our total debt in the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 as compared to the three six months
ended March 31, 2023, our interest expense declined due to having a lower debt balance. June 30, 2023.

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, our long-term debt was $4,511.3 million $4,510.8 million and included (i) a $1,278.6 million $1,275.3 million Term Loan B, excluding the
current portion of Term Loan B of $13.3 million, (ii) $1,050.0 million of 5.50% Senior Secured Notes, (i) $979.8 million of 5.750% Notes, (iv) $1,253.9 million of Senior Convertible
PIK Notes, and net of (v) a discount on Term Loan B of $8.9 million $8.4 million, (vi) a discount on Senior Convertible PIK Notes of $17.4 million $16.3 million, and (vii) debt issue
costs of $24.8 million. As of March 31, 2024, our total debt had an annualized weighted average cash interest rate of 6.82%. As of March 31, 2023, our total debt had an annualized
weighted average cash interest rate of 6.76% $23.6 million.

As of December 31, 2023, our long-term debt was $4,532.7 million and included (i) a $1,281.9 million Term Loan B, excluding the current portion of Term Loan B of $13.3
million, (i) $1,050.0 million of 5.50% Senior Secured Notes, (iii)) $979.8 million of 5.750% Notes, (iv) $1,275.0 million of Senior Convertible PIK Notes, and net of (v) a discount on
Term Loan B of $9.3 million, (vi) a discount on Senior Convertible PIK Notes of $18.8 million, and (vii) debt issue costs of $25.9 million.

As of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, our total debt had an annualized weighted average cash interest rate of 6.82% and 6.91%, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, our
total debt had a weighted average cash interest rate of 6.83%.

Interest Income

The decrease decreases in interest income of $2.31.8 million or 71.4%, and $4.1 million for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, respectively as
compared to the three and six months ended March 31, 2023 was June 30, 2023 were primarily due to less interest earned on interest bearing bank accounts resulting from lower
average invested cash and cash equivalents balances.

Gain on extinguishment of debt

During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company repurchased and cancelled $21.1 million of the Senior Convertible PIK Notes, resulting in the
recognition of a gain on debt extinguishment of $5.9 million, representing the difference between the reacquisition price of the debt and the net carrying amount of the extinguished
debt.

During the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company repurchased and cancelled $137.8 million of the 5.750% Notes, resulting in the recognition of a
gain on debt extinguishment of $36.8 million, representing the difference between the purchase price including associated fees and the net carrying amount of the extinguished
debt.

Change in fair value of Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares

The Company re-measures the fair value of the Private Placement Warrants and Unvested Founder Shares at each reporting period. From December 31, 2023 to March 31,
2024 June 30, 2024, the fair value of the Private Placement Warrants remained substantially unchanged decreased by $0.1 million and the fair value of the Unvested Founder
Shares decreased by $0.1 million$0.3 million. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in the stock price of the Company's Class A common stock and the passage of time
over that period.

(Benefit) provision Benefit for income taxes
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Net loss before income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 of $561.7 million $604.2 million generated a benefit for income taxes of $22.0
million $27.5 million. Net income loss before income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 of $1.9 million $46.2 million generated a provision benefit for
income taxes of $1.7 million $9.8 million.

Net loss before income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2024 of $1,165.9 million generated a benefit for income taxes of $49.5 million. Net loss before income taxes for
the six months ended June 30, 2023 of $44.3 million generated a benefit for income taxes of $8.1 million.

The effective tax rate for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 differed from the statutory rate primarily due to stock compensation expense, limitations on
executive compensation, non-deductible goodwill impairment, and state taxes. The effective tax rate for the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 differed from the
statutory rate primarily due to stock-based compensation expense, non-deductible mark-to-market liability, non-deductible transaction costs due to the BST acquisition and state
taxes. tax expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we had cash and cash equivalents of $69.259.2 million, which includes restricted cash of $10.510.4 million. We have $442.1 million of
loan availability under the revolving credit facility. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we had four letters of credit totaling $7.9 million of utilization against the revolving credit
facility. Three letters of credit are used to satisfy real estate lease agreements for three of our offices in lieu of security deposits in the amount of $1.8 million as of March 31,
2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The Company also has an irrevocable letter of credit to satisfy the obligations of a subsidiary in the amount of $6.1 million as of March
31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

On February 27, 2023, the Board approved a share repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up to $100.0 million of its Class A common stock from time to
time in open market transactions. The repurchase program was effective immediately and expires on December 31, 2024. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company has
repurchased its Class A common stock as part of this program using cash on hand for an aggregate amount of $25.6 million including commissions, of which $10.4 million was
spent during the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

Our primary sources of liquidity are internally generated funds combined with our borrowing capacity under our revolving credit facility. We believe these sources will provide
sufficient liquidity for us to meet our working capital and capital expenditure and other cash requirements for the next twelve months and for the long term. We may from time to time
at our sole discretion, purchase, redeem, or retire our long-term debt, through tender offers, in privately negotiated or open market transactions or otherwise. We plan to finance our
capital expenditures with cash from operations. Furthermore, our future liquidity and future ability to fund capital expenditures, working capital, and debt requirements are also
dependent upon our future financial performance, which is subject to many economic, commercial, financial, and other factors that are beyond our control, including the ability of
financial institutions to meet their lending obligations to us. If those factors significantly change, our business may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow from operations or
future borrowings may not be available to meet our liquidity needs. We anticipate that to the extent we require additional liquidity as a result of these factors or in order to execute
our strategy, it would be financed either by borrowings under our senior secured credit facilities, by other indebtedness, additional equity financings, or a combination of the
foregoing. We may be unable to obtain any such additional financing on reasonable terms or at all.

Cash Flow Summary

The following table is derived from our unaudited condensed consolidated statements of cash flows:

Three Months Ended March 31, Six Months Ended June 30,

(in thousands) (in thousands) 2024 2023 (in thousands) 2024 2023
Net cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities

Operating activities

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

For the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 as compared to the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities decreased by $14.5$3.7 million, or 22.6%5.2%, primarily due to lower earnings once adjusted for non-cash items, and favorable less
unfavorable changes in working capital. Changes in our working capital requirements reflect the increase in accrued taxes, partially offset by an increase in our trade
receivables. receivables and other assets.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased $7.4 decreased $140.4 million, or 32.2% 71.5%, as compared to the prior-year period, primarily due to higher investments in the
development acquisition of new products and services. BST during the prior-year period.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities decreased $77.9$85.7 million, or 71.2%71.3%, as compared to the prior-year period, primarily due to lower repurchases of debt
instruments by $85.1 million.

Term Loans and Revolvers
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On August 24, 2021, MPH issued new senior secured credit facilities composed of $1,325.0 million of Term Loan B and $450.0 million of Revolver B.

Interest on Term Loan B and Revolver B is calculated, at MPH's option, as (a) Term SOFR (or, with respect to the term loan facility only, 0.50%, if higher), plus the applicable
SOFR adjustment, plus the applicable margin, or (b) the highest rate of (1) the prime rate, (2) the federal funds effective rate, plus 0.50%, (3) the Term SOFR for an interest period
of one month, plus the applicable SOFR adjustment, plus 1.00% and (4) 0.50% for Term Loan B and 1.00% for Revolver B, in each case, plus an applicable margin of 4.25% for
Term Loan B and between 3.50% and 4.00% for Revolver B, depending on MPH's first lien debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio. The interest rate in effect for Term Loan B was 9.86%
as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

Prior to July 1, 2023, the London Interbank Offered Rate was used to calculate the interest on Term Loan B and Revolver B.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its floating rate debt. On September 12, 2023, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements with a total notional
value of $800.0 million to effectively convert a portion of its floating rate debt to a fixed-rate basis of 4.59% as a weighted-average across the three swaps. The interest rate swap
agreements are effective August 31, 2023 and mature on August 31, 2026. The Company entered into these agreements to eliminate or reduce the volatility of the cash flows in
interest payments associated with the Company's floating rate debt, thus reducing the impact of interest rate changes on future interest payment cash flows. The Company's interest
rate swaps are highly effective at offsetting the changes in cash outflows and therefore designated as cash flow hedging instruments. The blended rate for Term Loan B factoring in
the effect of the interest rate swap agreements was 9.39% 9.52% as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 9.53% as of December 31, 2023.

Term Loan B matures on September 1, 2028 and Revolver B matures on August 24, 2026.

We are obligated to pay a commitment fee on the average daily unused amount of our revolving credit facility. The annual commitment fee rate was 0.50% at March 31,
2024 June 30, 2024 and 0.375% 0.50% at March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023. The fee can range from an annual rate of 0.25% to 0.50% based on our consolidated first lien debt to
consolidated EBITDA ratio, as defined in the agreement.

Senior Notes

On October 8, 2020, the Company issued $1,300.0 million in aggregate principal amount of Senior Convertible PIK Notes. The Senior Convertible PIK Notes were issued with a
2.5% discount with a maturity date of October 15, 2027.

The Senior Convertible PIK Notes are convertible into shares of Class A common stock based on a $13.00 conversion price, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments. The
interest rate on the Senior Convertible PIK Notes is fixed at 6% in cash and 7% in kind, and is payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 of each year.

On October 29, 2020, the Company issued $1,300.0 million in aggregate principal amount of the 5.750% Notes. The 5.750% Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis
jointly and severally by the Company and its subsidiaries and have a maturation date of November 1, 2028. The 5.750% Notes were issued at par. The interest rate on the 5.750%
Notes is fixed at 5.750%, and the interest is payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year.

On August 24, 2021 MPH issued $1,050.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.50% Senior Secured Notes with a maturation date of September 1, 2028. The interest rate
on the 5.50% Senior Secured Notes is fixed at 5.50%, and is payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 of each year. The 5.50% Senior Secured Notes are guaranteed
and secured as described below under "Guarantees and Security".

During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company repurchased and cancelled $21.1 million of the Senior Convertible PIK Notes, resulting in the
recognition of a gain on debt extinguishment of $5.9 million.

During the three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, the Company repurchased and cancelled $137.8 million of the 5.750% Notes, resulting in the recognition of a
gain on debt extinguishment of $36.8 million. $36.8 million.

Debt Covenants and Events of Default

We are subject to certain affirmative and negative debt covenants under the debt agreements governing our indebtedness that limit our and/or certain of our subsidiaries' ability
to engage in specific types of transactions. These covenants limit our and/or certain of our subsidiaries' ability to, among other things:

¢ incur additional indebtedness or issue disqualified or preferred stock;

« pay certain dividends or make certain distributions on capital stock or repurchase or redeem capital stock;
* make certain loans, investments, or other restricted payments;

« transfer or sell certain assets;

* incur certain liens;

« place restrictions on the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other payments to us;
« guarantee indebtedness or incur other contingent obligations;
e prepay junior debt and make certain investments;

* consummate any merger, consolidation or amalgamation, or liquidate, wind up or dissolve itself (or suffer any liquidation or dissolution), or dispose of all or substantially all
of its business units, assets or other properties; and

« engage in transactions with our affiliates.
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Certain covenants related to the 5.50% Senior Secured Notes will cease to apply to the 5.50% Senior Secured Notes if such notes have investment grade ratings from both
Moody'’s Investors Service, Inc. and S&P Global Ratings.

The Revolver Ratio is such that, if, as of the last day of any fiscal quarter of MPH, the aggregate amount of loans under the revolving credit facility, letters of credit issued under
the revolving credit facility (to the extent not cash collateralized or backstopped or, in the aggregate, in excess of $10.0 million) and swingline loans are outstanding and/or issued in
an aggregate amount greater than 35% of the total commitments in respect of the revolving credit facility at such time, the revolving credit facility will require MPH to maintain a
maximum first lien secured leverage ratio of 6.75 to 1.00. Our consolidated first lien debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio was 3.78 3.82 times, 3.01 3.54 times, and 3.70 times as of
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023, and December 31, 2023, respectively.

As of March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 we were in compliance with all of the debt covenants.

The debt agreements governing the senior secured credit facilities, the 5.750% Notes and the 5.50% Senior Secured Notes contain customary events of default, subject to
grace periods and exceptions, which include, among others, payment defaults, cross-defaults to certain material indebtedness, certain events of bankruptcy, material judgments, in
the case of the debt agreements governing the senior secured credit facilities and the 5.50% Senior Secured Notes, failure of a guarantee on the liens on material collateral to
remain in effect, in the case of the debt agreements governing the senior secured credit facilities, any change of control. Upon the occurrence of an event of default under such debt
agreements, the lenders and holders of such debt will be permitted to accelerate the loans and terminate the commitments, as applicable, thereunder and exercise other specified
remedies available to the lenders and holders thereunder.

See the footnotes to the EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA reconciliation table provided above under "“Non-GAAP Financial Measures'” for material differences between the
financial information of MultiPlan and MPH.

Guarantees and Security

All obligations under the debt agreements governing the senior secured credit facilities and the 5.50% Senior Secured Notes are unconditionally guaranteed by MPH Acquisition
Corp. 1, the direct holding company parent of MPH, and each existing and subsequently acquired or organized direct or indirect wholly owned U.S. organized restricted subsidiary of
MPH (subject to certain exceptions). All such obligations, and the guarantees of such obligations, are secured, subject to permitted liens and other exceptions, by a first priority lien
shared between the senior secured credit facilities and the 5.50% Senior Secured Notes on substantially all of MPH'’s and the subsidiary guarantors’ tangible and intangible
property, and a pledge of all of the capital stock of each of their respective subsidiaries.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In preparing our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, we are required to make judgments, assumptions, and estimates, which we believe are reasonable
and prudent based on the available facts and circumstances. These judgments, assumptions and estimates affect certain of our revenues and expenses and their related balance
sheet accounts and disclosure of our contingent liabilities. We base our assumptions and estimates primarily on historical experience and consider known and projected trends. On
an ongoing basis, we re-evaluate our selection of assumptions and the method of calculating our estimates. Actual results, however, may materially differ from our calculated
estimates, and this difference would be reported in our current operations.

For a detailed description of our critical accounting estimates, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part II, Item 7 in
our 2023 Annual Report. For a detailed discussion of our significant accounting policies, see Note 2 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part Il, Item 8, “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” in our 2023 Annual Report.

Customer Concentration

Three customers individually accounted for 25%, 22% and 8% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2023. The loss of the business of one or more of our larger
customers could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. For further discussion on our customer concentration, please refer to Iltem 1A. “Risk Factors” in our
2023 Annual Report.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 General Information and Basis of Accounting of the Notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for
additional information.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

See Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk below.

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

For further information on the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting see Item 4. Controls and Procedures.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Reference is made to our 2023 Annual Report and in particular Item 7A.“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk” therein. As of March 31, 2024 June 30,
2024, there were no material changes in the market risks described in our 2023 Annual Report.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer, the
Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report, as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act.
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Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officers have concluded that, as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, our disclosure
controls and procedures were designed at a reasonable assurance level and were effective to provide reasonable assurance that the information we are required to disclose in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officers, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Management recognizes that a control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud or error, if any, have been detected.

Part Il - Other Information
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are a defendant in various lawsuits and other pending and threatened litigation and other adversarial matters as well as regulatory investigations, all of which have arisen in
the ordinary course of business. While the ultimate outcome with respect to such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, we believe they will not have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes during the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 to the risk factors previously disclosed in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” “Risk
Factors” in the Company's 2023 Annual Report.

We operate in a litigious environment which may adversely affect our financial results.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales We may, and in the past have, become involved in legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of Equity Securities, Use business, including
litigation regarding employment matters, breach of Proceeds, contract, violations of laws and Issuer Purchasesregulations, and other commercial matters. Further, we are the
subject of Equity Securities government investigations from time to time. Due to the inherent uncertainty in the litigation process, the resolution of any particular legal proceeding
could result in changes to our products and business practices and could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

The table below represents Healthcare providers have become more resistant to the Company's repurchase use of shares cost management techniques and are engaging in
litigation to avoid application of its Class A common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Total ber of Shares F as

(in thousands, except share data) Average Price Paid Per Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Approximate Dollar Value of Shares that
Period Total Number of Shares Purchased Share Programs May Yet Be Purchased
January 1 - 31, 2024

Repurchase program() 1,655,105 $ 1.16 1,655,105 $ 82,868
February 1 - 29, 2024

Repurchase programe) 3,313,777 $ 1.15 3,313,777 $ 79,050
March 1 - 31, 2024

Repurchase program) 5,256,573 $ 0.88 5,256,573 $ 74,412
Total

Repurchase program) 10,225,455 $ 1.01 10,225,455 $ 74,412

(a) On November 8, 2023, the Company announced that its Board extended the Company’s current $100 million program cost management practices. Litigation brought by
healthcare providers as well as client members has challenged insurers' claims adjudication and reimbursement decisions, and healthcare cost management providers, such as
MultiPlan, are sometimes made party to repurchase shares (the “Share Repurchase Program”) of the Company’s common stock through December 31, 2024. Repurchases under
the share repurchase program such suits or involved in related litigation. Further, MultiPlan may be, and has been in the past, made in amounts and at prices the Company deems
appropriate party to such lawsuits or litigation may be brought independently against MultiPlan under various legal bases, including, breach of contract, misrepresentation, unjust
enrichment, antitrust, or violations of ERISA or RICO, and may be made under other legal bases or theories in the future. Such litigation is increasingly brought involving multiple
parties, multiple claims or on a class-wide basis. We and our subsidiaries have and may, in the future, become involved in such litigation.

For example and relating to litigation on the basis of the violation of antitrust laws, the Company has been named in numerous federal lawsuits asserting that, among other
things, the Company is conspiring with commercial health insurance payors to suppress out of network reimbursements in violation of applicable antitrust law. These lawsuits have
been filed in the Southern District of New York, the Northern District of lllinois, and the Northern District of California, naming the Company and, in certain cases, certain payors, as
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defendants. The lawsuits are in the process of being centralized in the Northern District of lllinois pursuant to a trading plan intended transfer order issued by the federal Judicial
Panel on Multidistrict Litigation. We believe these lawsuits are without merit and intend to qualify under Rule 10b5-1 vigorously defend the Company.

Because we operate in an industry that is highly-regulated and where such regulations are continuously evolving, we cannot assure you that new federal and state laws and
regulations or other changes that adversely impact healthcare providers or insurers will not lead to increased litigation risk to us and other cost management providers and insurers.
Exacerbating this risk is that many healthcare providers and insurers have greater financial resources than us and other healthcare cost management providers have and may be
more willing to engage in, and devote resources to, litigation as a result. In addition, certain of the Exchange Act. Repurchases by agreements we enter into include indemnification
provisions that may subject us to costs and damages in the Company under the share repurchase program will be subject to general market and economic conditions, applicable
legal requirements and other considerations, and the share repurchase program event of a claim against an indemnified party.

We maintain insurance coverage for certain types of claims; however, such insurance coverage may not apply or may be suspended, modified insufficient to cover all losses or
discontinued atall types of claims that may arise. Further, even if we were to prevail in any time without prior notice atparticular dispute, litigation could be costly and time-
consuming and divert the Company’s discretion. attention of our management and key personnel from our business operations.

Lawsuits of the types set out above could materially adversely affect our result, especially if they proliferate. In addition, such lawsuits may affect our customers' use of our products
and services, especially our cost management products and services.

Item 5. Other Information

(a) During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, none of our officers or directors adopted or terminated any contract, instruction or written plan for the
purchase or sale of our securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) or any "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement.”
(b) As previously disclosed, on March 28, 2024, the Company received a written notice from the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") that it was not in
compliance with the continued listing standard set forth in Section 802.01C of the NYSE's Listed Company Manual as the average closing price of the
Company'’s Class A common stock was less than $1.00 per share over a consecutive 30 trading-day period ending March 27, 2024. The Company is
considering available alternatives, including, but not limited to, a reverse stock split, subject to stockholder approval no later than September 28, 2024, if
necessary, to regain compliance.

Item 6. Exhibits

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Filed Herewith
Offer Letter, dated November 29, 2022, by and between MultiPlan Corporation and Carol
10.1  Nutter. X
Offer Letter, dated February 15, 2024, by and between MultiPlan Corporation and Jerome
10.2  Hogge. 8-K  001-39228 10.1 March 7, 2024

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13-

311 of2002 X
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13-a

31.2 2002 X
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. of Section 1350, as

32.1 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 X
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. of Section 1350, as

32.2 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 X

The following financial information from MultiPlan Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2024 formatted in Inline XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language) includes: (i) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss)
and Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iii) the Unaudited Condensed Statements of
Changes in Stockholders' Equity, (iv) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial
101  Statements. X

104  Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit

Number Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Filed Herewith
10.2 Amendment to the MultiPlan Corporation 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan 8-K 001-39228 10.1 April 26, 2024
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31.1

101
104

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13-

of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13-a
- 14(a).and 15-d-14(a),_as adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. of Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. of Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The following financial information from MultiPlan Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 2024 formatted in Inline XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language) includes: (i) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss)
and Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iii) the Unaudited Condensed Statements of
Changes in Stockholders' Equity, (iv) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Quarterly Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.

Dated: May 9, 2024 August 2, 2024

MULTIPLAN CORPORATION

By: [s/James M. Head
James M. Head

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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November 29, 2022

Ms. Carol Nutter

[Address]

Sent via email to:

Dear Carol,

We are pleased to confirm our offer of employment with MultiPlan. We believe you have the experience and qualifications to contribute to our team.

EXHIBIT 10.1

The position offered is Senior Vice President, Chief People Officer, reporting directly to me (Dale A. White, President/CEO). Your target start date will be a mutually agreed
upon date, and the starting rate of pay will be $12,807.69 per pay period (annualized at $333,000.00). Starting in 2023, you will also be eligible to participate in the MultiPlan
annual incentive compensation plan, with a target bonus of 50 percent of base salary payable when companywide bonuses are distributed (annually in March of each calendar

year for the previous year). The goals and deliverables that you must meet in order to receive your target bonus amount will be set with you annually.
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Additionally, you will receive a $125,000.00 sign on bonus, 50 percent payable within thirty (30) days of your first day of employment and 50 percent payable on or around April
30, 2023. In the event you voluntarily resign from MultiPlan prior to December 31, 2023, the sign on bonus received must be repaid, in its entirety. Should you be released
without cause, no repayment of the sign on bonus will be required.

You will also be eligible for participation in our annual management equity plan in accordance with your position starting in 2023 at a target grant amount equal to 150 percent of
base salary in the form granted to other executives at a similar level. Annual equity grants are subject to approval by MultiPlan’s compensation committee, and contain standard
vesting and other terms.

You will be eligible for benefits as provided for full-time employees. Benefit information can be found in the attached Benefits Guide.

Please note that this offer is also contingent upon the successful completion of a pre-employment background check within the guidelines of state and federal law.

As a condition of your employment, you will need to provide MultiPlan with documents that establish both your identity and employment eligibility to work in the United States. A
list of acceptable documents required by the Immigration Reform Control Act of 1986 that are proof of a lawful work status can be found on the 1-9 form which you will receive
through our recruitment system of record, Recruitment Management.

Your employment is considered employment at will. This means employment is not defined for a specific time, rather either you or MultiPlan may terminate the employment
relationship at any time with or without notice and with or without cause. However, in the event of a termination of your employment by MultiPlan without cause, you would be

entitled to six (6) months’ base salary continuation subject to the execution of a waiver and release of claims against the Company.

1#.0001793229-24-000079image_3a.jpg

EXHIBIT 10.1
1#.0001793229-24-000079image.jpg

Please indicate your acceptance of this offer by returning a signed copy of this letter via email or e-sign.

We look forward to you joining the MultiPlan team!

Sincerely,

[s/ Dale A. White

Dale A. White

President & CEO

Accepted: /s/ Carol Nutter Date: 11/30/2022

Carol Nutter
1#.0001793229-24-000079image_3a.jpg
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULES 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
1, Travis Dalton, certify that:
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1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of MultiPlan Corporation;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 9, 2024 August 2, 2024

/sl Travis Dalton

Travis Dalton
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO RULES 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, James M. Head, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of MultiPlan Corporation;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
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a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 9, 2024 August 2, 2024

/sl James M. Head

James M. Head
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of MultiPlan Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”), I, Travis Dalton, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: May 9, 2024 August 2, 2024

/sl Travis Dalton

Travis Dalton
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of MultiPlan Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”), I, James M. Head, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Dated: May 9, 2024 August 2, 2024

/sl James M. Head

James M. Head
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO
FINANCIALS PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING
THE TEXT AND THE COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS
REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT
OR OTHER DECISIONS.

©2024, Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Patents Pending.
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